
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN
THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, JULY 1, 2014 - 10:00 A.M.
R E V I S E D

 

           

1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No. LL-14-04, a liquor
license application submitted by Ralph N. Killmer for a new Series 10 Beer &
Wine Store License with an interim permit to operate at Killmer's Kountry
Store located north of Globe.  (Marian Sheppard)

 

B. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No. LL-14-05, an application
submitted by Ray Stephens, Jr. for a new Series 13 Domestic Farm Winery
License for Trident Winery located in Pine.  (Marian Sheppard)

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A. Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Standard Software Maintenance
Agreement between Gila County and New World Systems Corporation in the
amount of $422,810 plus sales tax for a four-year term from July 1, 2014, to
June 30, 2018, to provide continued maintenance on the County licensed
New World application packages.  (Jeff Hessenius)

 

B. Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement
among the Pima County School Superintendent, the Maricopa County School
Superintendent, the Yavapai County School Superintendent, the Gila County
School Superintendent and the Navajo County School Superintendent to
establish the Arizona Education and Technology Consortium for the purpose
of establishing, managing, and operating an interactive television system for
the purpose of providing instructional services to students, professional
development services to education professionals, and to assign a Fiscal Agent
for the Consortium, to become effective on the date of final signature and
terminate on June 30, 2019.  (Linda O'Dell)

 

C. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-07-02 establishing
the November 4, 2014, General Election for the voters to decide whether or
not to continue the Gila County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax and to
share the revenue with the city and towns in the County.  (Don McDaniel)

 

D. Information/Discussion/Action to purchase the NAPA Auto Parts property at
110 W. Main Street in Payson, Arizona, in an amount not to exceed $450,500
and authorize the Chairman to sign all required documents.
(Don McDaniel/Steve Stratton)

  

  



 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent Agenda
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted upon
as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the Board
of Supervisors.)

 

 

A. Approval of Amendment No. 11 to Contract No. A11PC00100 between the
Bureau of Indian Affairs and Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County
Juvenile Detention Center, to increase the contract amount by $8,000, from
$118,400.01 to $126,400.01.

 

B. Approval of a Request for Release of Funds between the Gila County Housing
Services and the Arizona Department of Housing, which will allow Housing
Services to request a release of funds for multiple contracts and multiple
years if said contracts are awarded.

 

C. Approval of two Special Event Liquor License Applications submitted by Pine
Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc. to serve liquor at the Fire on the Rim
Mountain Bike Race fund-raising event to be held September 12-14, 2014,
and the fund-raising dinner to benefit Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction wildfire
prevention programs to be held on September 20, 2014.

 

D. Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by the
Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library of Pine, Arizona, to serve liquor at a
fund-raising event to be held on October 11, 2014.

 

E. Approval to appoint Ken Volz, represented as a Citizen and head of the Gila
County Personnel Commission, to the Correctional Officers Retirement Board
(CORP) Local Board for Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers and to
the CORP Local Board for Dispatchers to fill a vacancy for the term beginning
July 1, 2014, through December 31, 2017; and to re-appoint Ed Carpenter,
represented as a Citizen, to the same two CORP Local Boards for the term of
November 2, 2014, through December 31, 2015, in order to align Mr.
Carpenters' term of service with the correct term of office.

 

F. Acknowledgment of the appointment of Ardith Hogan to the East Verde Park
Fire District Governing Board to complete Mary Cambier's unexpired term of
office through December 31, 2016.

 

G. Acknowledgment of the February 2014 and May 2014 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

 

H. Acknowledgment of the April 2014 monthly activity report submitted by the
Recorder's Office.

 

I. Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted by the
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 

J. Approval of the May 27, 2014, and June 3, 2014, Board of Supervisors'
meeting minutes.

 

  

  



 

K. Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of June 3,
2014, June 10, 2014, June 17, 2014, and June 24, 2014.

 

L. Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by
the County Manager for the weeks of June 9, 2014, to June 13, 2014.

 

M. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the week of July 1, 2014.  
 

N. Adoption of Resolution No. 14-06-09 (Amended), a resolution providing
funding to be used for highway and street purposes including costs of right of
way acquisitions and expenses related thereto and construction,
reconstruction, maintenance, repair and roadside development of county, city
and town roads, streets and bridges and payment of principal and interest on
highway and street bonds, and for regional transportation projects that are
included in the regional transportation plan of the County prepared by the
County, any city, town or regional planning agency; and levying a
transportation excise tax to provide moneys for said purposes.  Section 10.
Effective Date; Time in Effect of the Resolution was amended to reflect
some minor changes.

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow
individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue within the
jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant
to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call
to the public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may respond
to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, may ask staff to
review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for
further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members
of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief
summary of current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING

  

  



   

ARF-2575     Public Hearing      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk
of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Order No. LL-14-04, a Liquor License Application for Killmer's Kountry Store

Background Information
Ralph N. Killmer has submitted an application to the Arizona Department of Liquor
Licenses and Control (DLLC) for a new Series 10 Beer & Wine Store License for
Killmer's Kountry Store in Globe.  Part of the statutory process is once the
DLLC accepts and processes the license, it is sent to the local governing body in
which city, town or county the establishment is located.  Upon the local governing
body's review of the application, a recommendation is then issued by the local
governing body, which in Gila County it is the Board of Supervisors (Board), to the
DLLC to either approve, deny or issue a "no recommendation" decision.

This application was initially sent by the DLLC to the City of Globe, and then it was
forwarded and received by the Clerk of the Board on May 28th for processing.

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted at the
establishment for a period of 20 days, specifically to inform any person residing or
owning or leasing property within a one-mile radius of the establishment regarding
this application. To date, the Clerk of the Board's Department has not received any
objections to this application.

Evaluation
This application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors Department for submission to the Board. An internal review has been
conducted by both the Gila County Building Permit Department and the Health
Department. The Health Department and Building Permit Department have visited the
establishment and don't have any issues with regard to other permits required by Gila
County. Neither departments have any objection with regard to this liquor license
application.

Conclusion
This application has been reviewed by several County departments with no objections
and no one has submitted a written objection to this application; therefore, a public
hearing should be held by the Board to entertain any comments from the public with
regard to this application before the Board takes an action to issue a recommendation
to the DLLC.

Recommendation



The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue an approval
recommendation to the DLLC.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No. LL-14-04, a liquor
license application submitted by Ralph N. Killmer for a new Series 10 Beer & Wine
Store License with an interim permit to operate at Killmer's Kountry Store located
north of Globe.  (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
Liquor License Application
Interoffice Memos LL-14-04
S.O. Affidavit of Posting









   

ARF-2604     Public Hearing      2. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk
of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Order No. LL-14-05, a Liquor License Application for Trident Winery

Background Information
Ray Stephens, Jr. has submitted an application to the State Department of Liquor
Licenses and Control (DLLC) for a New Series 13 Domestic Farm Winery License for
Trident Winery located in Pine. Part of the statutory process is once the DLLC accepts
and processes the license, it is sent to the local governing body in which city, town or
county the establishment is located.  Upon the local governing body's review of the
application, a recommendation is then issued by the local governing, which in Gila
County it is the Board of Supervisors (Board), to the DLLC either approve, deny or
issue a "no recommendation" decision.

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted at the
establishment for a period of 20 days, specifically to inform any person residing or
owning or leasing property within a one-mile radius of the establishment regarding
this application. To date, the Clerk of the Board Department has not received any
objections to this application.

Evaluation
This application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors' Department for submission to the Board.  An internal review has been
conducted by both the Planning and Zoning Department and the Health Department. 
Both departments have submitted paperwork stating there are no issues related to
this application with regard to their departmental policies/procedures.

Conclusion
All of Gila County's requirements have been met with regard to this application; no
one has submitted a written objection to this application; therefore, a public hearing
should be held by the Board to entertain any comments from the public with regard to
this application before the Board takes an action to issue a recommendation to the
DLLC.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue an approval
recommendation to the DLLC.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No. LL-14-05, an application



Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No. LL-14-05, an application
submitted by Ray Stephens, Jr. for a new Series 13 Domestic Farm Winery License for
Trident Winery located in Pine.  (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
LL-14-05 Application for Liquor License
LL-14-05 Interoffice Memorandums for Approval
LL-14-05 Sheriff's Affidavit of Posting





























   

ARF-2602     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: FY 2014-2018 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7-1-2014 to
6-30-2018

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Software Maintenance Agreement with New World Systems Corporation

Background Information
January 17, 2006, Gila County contracted with New World Systems Corporation to
provide the County with a software accounting system.  Per the agreement, new or
updated modules may be added to the current County licensed new world application
packages.

On May 17, 2011, the Board of Supervisors approved a Standard Software
Maintenance Agreement for the New World software accounting system.  The term of
that agreement was July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2014. 

Evaluation
The current Software Maintenance Agreement between Gila County and New World
Systems Corporation for the accounting software utilized by Gila County will expire
on June 30, 2014.  The Software Maintenance Agreement with New World provides for
customer service support, software updates and any software enhancements to our
current packages.

Conclusion
This agreement will benefit the County by providing an up-to-date accounting system
and will enhance financial accountability and reporting.

Recommendation
The Finance Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the Software
Maintenance Agreement between New World Systems Corporation for modules within
the licensed new world application packages.

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Standard Software Maintenance
Agreement between Gila County and New World Systems Corporation in the amount
of $422,810 plus sales tax for a four-year term from July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2018,
to provide continued maintenance on the County licensed New World application
packages.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
New World Standard Software Maintenance Agreement for 2014 to 2018
Standard Software Maintenance Agreement for 7-1-11 to 6-30-14
Legal Explanation





















 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2640     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Linda O'Dell,
School
Superintendent

Submitted By: Linda O'Dell, School Superintendent,
School Superintendent's Office

Department: School Superintendent's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2014-15 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

FY2015 -
FY2019

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement among the Pima County School Superintendent, the
Maricopa County School Superintendent, the Yavapai County School Superintendent,
the Gila County School Superintendent and the Navajo County School Superintendent.

Background Information
Arizona was awarded $25 million through the U.S. Department of Education's "Race
to the Top" (RTTT) Phase 3 grant program in 2011 to advance Arizona's education
reform efforts. Targeted elements of the grant included activities in four areas: 1)
Standards and Assessments; 2) Data Systems; 3) Developing "Great Teachers and
Leaders"; and 4) Support for Low-Achieving Schools. The Arizona Department of
Education (ADE), the Governor's Office of Education Innovation and Arizona's County
School Superintendents were named as the major partners and collaborators to
develop and implement the RTTT grant activities.

The creation of five Regional Education Service Centers was central to the
development and implementation of RTTT grant activities and delivery of services,
including professional development and technical support to local schools, districts
and educators. The fifteen County School Superintendents collaboratively agreed to
the configuration of five Regional Education Service Centers in early 2012.

The Gila County School Superintendent’s Office is part of the East Central Regional
Service Center (ECRSC), in partnership with the offices of the School Superintendents
of Pinal, Graham and Greenlee Counties. The Gila County School Superintendent's
Office is the fiscal agent for the ECRSC. While the majority of funding for the Regional
Service Centers has come from the RTTT grant, other resources have been made
available through the Governor's Office of Education Innovation; some activities and
services provided on behalf of the ECRSC through the Education Service Agencies of
the four counties are paid for with RTTT allocations made directly to local school
districts.

The collaborative efforts of the Regional Education Service Centers has led to



The collaborative efforts of the Regional Education Service Centers has led to
discussion of ways to leverage and sustain the regional partnerships and provide
expanded services and support for schools, districts, educators and students on a
state-wide basis. The establishment of the Arizona Education and Technology
Consortium (Consortium) is an outgrowth of those conversations.  Initial funding for
the Consortium will come from a $29,000 allocation of RTTT funds from each of the
five regional service centers.  It is intended that the Consortium and its activities will
be subsequently sustained through fees for services, grants and other funding
sources. 

The purpose of the IGA is to establish the Arizona Education and Technology
Consortium for the purpose of establishing, managing and operating an interactive
television system for the purpose of providing instructional services to students,
professional development services to education professionals, and to assign the Pima
County School Superintendent as the Fiscal Agent for the Consortium. 

Evaluation
The Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) among the Pima County School
Superintendent, the Maricopa County School Superintendent, the Yavapai County
School Superintendent, the Gila County School Superintendent and the Navajo
County School Superintendent will establish the Arizona Education and Technology
Consortium for the purpose of establishing, managing, and operating an interactive
television system for the purpose of providing instructional services to students,
professional development services to education professionals, and to assign a Fiscal
Agent for the Consortium. The IGA is to become effective on the date of final signature
and terminate on June 30, 2019.  Modifications to or extension of the contract
termination date shall be by formal written amendment of all parties. The IGA was
drafted by the Pima County Attorney's Office with input from the County School
Superintendents.

Conclusion
The approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement among the Pima County School
Superintendent, the Maricopa County School Superintendent, the Yavapai County
School Superintendent, the Gila County School Superintendent, and the Navajo
County School Superintendent will authorize the establishment of the Arizona
Education and Technology Consortium for the purpose of establishing, managing, and
operating an interactive television system for the purpose of providing instructional
services to students, professional development services to education professionals,
and to assign the Pima County School Superintendent as the Fiscal Agent for the
Consortium.

Recommendation
The Gila County School Superintendent recommends that the Gila County Board of



The Gila County School Superintendent recommends that the Gila County Board of
Supervisors approve the Intergovernmental Agreement among the Pima County School
Superintendent, the Maricopa County School Superintendent, the Yavapai County
School Superintendent, the Gila County School Superintendent, and the Navajo
County School Superintendent to establish the Arizona Education and Technology
Consortium for the purpose of establishing, managing, and operating an interactive
television system for the purpose of providing instructional services to students,
professional development services to education professionals, and to assign the Pima
County School Superintendent as the Fiscal Agent for the Consortium.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement among
the Pima County School Superintendent, the Maricopa County School
Superintendent, the Yavapai County School Superintendent, the Gila County School
Superintendent and the Navajo County School Superintendent to establish the
Arizona Education and Technology Consortium for the purpose of establishing,
managing, and operating an interactive television system for the purpose of providing
instructional services to students, professional development services to education
professionals, and to assign a Fiscal Agent for the Consortium, to become effective on
the date of final signature and terminate on June 30, 2019.  (Linda O'Dell)

Attachments
Gila County IGA ITV Final_062014
Legal Explanation



















 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2639     Regular Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Sarayl Shunkamolah, Management
Associate, County Manager

Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax General Election Resolution No.
14-07-02

Background Information
On October 29, 2013, the Board of Supervisors agreed to appoint a Citizens
Committee to explore the advisability of holding an election in November 2014 to get
voter approval to continue the 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax for an additional
20 years.

On January 7, 2014, a 16 member Citizens Committee was established by the Board
of Supervisors. The Committee met twice and after receiving a considerable amount of
information from County staff regarding the positive impact the tax has had for the
last twenty years and transportation needs in the future, they unanimously agreed to
call for a continuation of the tax.

On March 4, 2014, the Board of Supervisors voted to: 1) receive the Transportation
Excise Tax Continuation Citizens Committee recommendation to adopt a resolution
calling for a November 4, 2014, election providing funding to be used solely for
highway and street purposes; 2) thank and acknowledge the following
sixteen Committee members with a certificate of appreciation: Gary Andress, Don
Ascoli, Robert Bleyl, Ed Carpenter, Darryl Dalley, Rex Hinshaw, Mitch Malkovich,
Ronnie McDaniel, Joe Miller, Dixie Mundy, Mickie Nye, Melvin Palmer, Marie Petroff,
Cliff Potts, Rick Powers and Joe Sanchez; and, 3) officially disband the Committee.

Since the Board accepted the Committee's recommendation in March, staff has been
working with consultants to develop a brochure of pertinent facts and plans and to
provide information to the public through community meetings and presentations to
various civic and community organizations.

On June 24, 2014, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 14-06-09, a
resolution providing funding to be used for highway and street purposes including
costs of right of way acquisitions and expenses related thereto and construction,
reconstruction, maintenance, repair and roadside development of county, city and
town roads, streets and bridges and payment of principal and interest on highway and
street bonds, and for regional transportation projects that are included in the regional
transportation plan of the County prepared by the County, any city, town or regional
planning agency; and levying a transportation excise tax to provide funds for said
purposes.



purposes.

Evaluation
Resolution No. 14-07-02 is a resolution establishing the November 4, 2014, General
Election for the continuation of the Gila County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax. 
The resolution is recommended pursuant to applicable sections of A.R.S 42-6107, that
a majority of qualified voters voting at a general election shall approve a
transportation excise tax in a county with a population of four hundred thousand or
fewer persons.

Conclusion
The Citizens Committee thoroughly reviewed uses to which this tax has been put in
the past 20 years and studied the future needs as set forth in the transportation
plans of the County and major population centers in the County and recommended
that the Board call for an election to continue the tax.

The tax revenue would be collected by the State Department of Revenue and
distributed to Gila County for use within the unincorporated areas of the County and
to the incorporated cities and towns for use within their jurisdictions. The calculation
of the amounts to be distributed shall be made on the basis that the population of
each jurisdiction (Gila County, cities, towns) bears to the total population of the
County.

Each respective jurisdiction shall receive a minimum of 0.85% of the total amount to
be distributed. In addition, after the distribution of the minimum to each jurisdiction,
the remaining amount shall be distributed to each jurisdiction in the amount to be
determined by multiplying the total tax revenues remaining after the minimum
distribution, by a fraction, the numerator being the population of each respective
jurisdiction and denominator being the total population of Gila County including the
cities and towns in the County.

This call for an election by the Board of Supervisors is a necessary step in providing
the voters the opportunity to vote to continue the 1/2 cent transportation excise tax
in Gila County and to share the revenue with the city and towns in the County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 14-07-02
establishing the November 4, 2014, General Election for the continuation of the Gila
County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-07-02 establishing
the November 4, 2014, General Election for the voters to decide whether or not to
continue the Gila County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax and to share the
revenue with the city and towns in the County.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Resolution No. 14-07-02





 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-07-02 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, ESTABLISHING THE NOVEMBER 4, 2014, 

GENERAL ELECTION FOR THE CONTINUATION OF THE GILA 

COUNTY ½ CENT TRANSPORTATION EXCISE TAX 

 

 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. 42-6107 provides that a majority of qualified voters voting at a 

General Election shall approve a transportation excise tax in a county with a population of four 

hundred thousand or fewer persons; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has on June 24, 2014, passed, 

adopted and approved Resolution No. 14-06-09 which is a resolution to provide funding for 

highway and street purposes including costs of rights of way acquisitions and expenses related 

thereto and construction, reconstruction, maintenance, repair and roadside development of 

county, city and town roads, streets and bridges and payment of principal and interest on 

highway and street bonds, and for regional transportation projects that are included in the 

regional transportation plan of the County prepared by the County, any city, town or regional 

planning agency, and levying a transportation excise tax to provide moneys for said purposes 

(2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax Resolution).  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA does hereby establish the November 4, 

2014, General Election for the purpose of referring the proposed 2014 Gila County ½ Cent 

Transportation Excise Tax to the qualified voters of Gila County. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1
st
 day of July 2014, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 

 

Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

______________________________ __________________________________  

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Bryan Chambers  

Deputy Attorney Principal 



   

ARF-2645     Regular Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted By: Marian
Sheppard, Clerk,
BOS, Clerk of the
Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Fiscal Year: 2014 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

N/A Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Acquisition of the NAPA Auto Parts Property at 110 W. Main Street in Payson, AZ.

Background Information
In 2007, Gila County began the process of developing a Long Range Facility
Management Plan to accommodate County managerial needs and growth.  It was
determined in 2007, that the acquisition of future properties would be needed as the
County Government expanded to meet the needs of the constituency. 

The Board of Supervisors discussed this issue at its meeting of May 6, 2014, and, at
that time, the Board voted to continue the discussion to the Board's June 24th
meeting.  The June 24th meeting includes an agenda item to adopt the County's
Tentative Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Budget, so the Board felt it was appropriate to decide
upon this proposed expense during the budget discussions.

Also, at the May 6th meeting the Board requested more information regarding all of
the alternatives to address our office space needs for County operations including
square footage requirements. Consultant Brevick has developed the inventory and
projection of square footage requirements which will be discussed at the July 29,
2014 Board Work Session.

Evaluation
The Long Range Facility Management Plan, conducted in 2007, has recently been



The Long Range Facility Management Plan, conducted in 2007, has recently been
updated to review the condition of current existing County facilities in the Globe and
Payson areas.  While there has not been a drastic rise in population in Gila County in
recent years, the business of providing programs and assistance that will benefit and
aid the residents of Gila County is an ongoing endeavor.  It takes staff and resources
to apply for grants, manage resources and implement programs that will assist Gila
County citizens. In particular, the facilities in the Payson area are sorely in need of
expansion. Parking continues to be an ongoing problem for residents needing to
access Gila County buildings. The purchase of the NAPA Auto Parts Building at 110
W. Main Street in Payson, AZ will aid in alleviating some of the space restraints Gila
County is currently experiencing in Payson.

In addition, other office and court space needs must be considered on a county-wide
basis.

Conclusion
Purchasing the NAPA Auto Parts Building will enable Gila County to expand the Gila
County Payson complex to acquire the land for future expansion of facilities as
referenced in the Amended Long Range Facilities Management Plan. 

The plan which was presented at the February 25, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Work
Session has been amended with the inclusion of building square footage availability
and future needs for the entire county. Additional discussion and consideration be
given to the overall space needs of the County at the July 29, 2014 Board Work
Session.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board consider purchasing the NAPA Auto Parts property
on Main Street in Payson for a cost of not to exceed $450,500.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to purchase the NAPA Auto Parts property at 110 W.
Main Street in Payson, Arizona, in an amount not to exceed $450,500 and authorize
the Chairman to sign all required documents.
(Don McDaniel/Steve Stratton)



   

ARF-2616     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Kendall Dee
Rhyne, Chief
Probation
Officer

Submitted By:
Sylvia Hernandez, Probation Officer
Manager, Superior Court

Department: Superior Court Division: Probation Department
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

04/01/2011
to 03/31/2015

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 11 to Contract No. A11PC00100 between the Bureau of Indian Affairs
and Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center.

Background Information
The Gila County Juvenile Detention Center has contracted with the Bureau of Indian
Affairs for several years.  This contract is an excellent source of income for Gila
County.  The Detention Center provides housing within its juvenile detention facility
for juveniles who have been arrested and awaiting transport, or awaiting adjudication,
serving sentences, and /or awaiting release from custody as a result of having been
arrested or having been convicted of Tribal violations occurring in Indian Country
within the BIA Truxton Canon Agency, Fort Apache Agency, Colorado River Agency
and Salt River Agency, within the agency's jurisdiction.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 11 to Contract No. A11PC00100 increases the total contract amount
by $8,000, from $118,400.01 to $126,400.01.

Conclusion
Amendment No. 11 to Contract No. A11PC00100 increases the total contract amount
by $8,000, from $118,400.01 to $126,400.01.

Recommendation
The Gila County Probation Department recommends the approval of Amendment No.
11 to contract No. A11PC00100 with the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 11 to Contract No. A11PC00100 between the Bureau of



Approval of Amendment No. 11 to Contract No. A11PC00100 between the Bureau of
Indian Affairs and Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County Juvenile Detention
Center, to increase the contract amount by $8,000, from $118,400.01 to $126,400.01.

Attachments
Amendment No. 11
Amendment No. 10
Amendment No. 9
Amendment No. 8
Amendment No. 7
Amendment No. 6
Amendment No. 5
Amendment No. 4
Amendment No. 3
Amendment No. 2
Amendment No. 1
Contract No. A11PC00100
Legal Explanation





















































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2621     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Christine Lopez, Administrative Clerk
Specialist, Community Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Information
Request/Subject
Notice of Intent to Request Release of Funds for Residential Rehabilitation Projects Using RER/Appendix
A Tiered Review Protocol

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) administers Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
funding for programs through units of local government in some communities that provide emergency
repair to properties owned and occupied as the primary resident of low-income homeowners.

ADOH also administers CDBG funding for programs through units of local government and non-profit
agencies that provide rehabilitation to certain property types owned and occupied as the primary
residence of low-income homeowners.

Evaluation
Gila County Housing Services has or will be applying for funding through the Arizona Department of
Housing.  If contracts are awarded, ADOH requires that agencies receiving funds submit a Request for
Release of Funds.  ADOH has changed the process for requesting a release of funds in that they are now
allowing for a one-time request to cover multiple contracts and multiple years instead of submitting a
request for each contract awarded.

Housing Services will be applying for the following funding through ADOH:  Community Development
Block Grant and Regional Account and Community Development Block Grant State Special Projects
funding.   If contracts are awarded and funding is received, it will be used to rehabilitate approximately
14 homes/units to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Conclusion
If contracts are awarded to Gila County Housing Services through the Arizona Department of Housing,
approval of this request to release funds will ensure that Housing Services is in compliance with any
contracts that are awarded.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Request for Release of Funds. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Request for Release of Funds between the Gila County Housing Services and the Arizona
Department of Housing, which will allow Housing Services to request a release of funds for multiple
contracts and multiple years if said contracts are awarded.

Attachments
Notice of Intent to Request Release of Funds ADOH



Rev. 12/2012   1 

        E-12 Request for Release of Funds and Certification 
(HUD Form 7015.15/ OMB No. 2506-0087 exp. 10/31/2014) 

 

 
This form is to be used by Responsible Entities and Recipients (as defined in 24 CFR 58.2) when requesting the release of funds, and 
requesting the authority to use such funds, for HUD programs identified by statutes that provide for the assumption of the environmental review 
responsibility by units of general local government and States. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 
36 minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data 
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. This agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to 
respond to, a collection of information unless that collection displays a valid OMB control number. 

 

Part 1.  Program Description and Request for Release of Funds (to be completed by Responsible Entity) 
1.  Program Title(s) Number (Optional) 
CDBG, SSP, CDBG RA 

2.  HUD/State Identification Number 
86-6004791 

3.  Recipient Identification  
Gila County Community Services Div. 

4.  OMB Catalog  Number(s) (CFDA #) 
25006-0087   

5. Name and Address of Responsible Entity 
Michael A. Pastor 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 
1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, AZ  85501 
 
 

6.  For information about this request, contact (name and phone number) 
Malissa Buzan    Phone:  928-425-7631 

7.  HUD or State Agency and office unit to receive request 
Arizona Department of Housing 

8.  Name and address of Recipient (if different than Responsible Entity) 
Gila County Community Services 
5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 200 
Globe, AZ  85501 
 

 
The recipient(s) of assistance under the program listed above requests the release of funds and removal of 
environmental grant conditions governing the use of the assistance for the following: 
 
9.  Program Activity(ies)Project Name(s) 
CDBG – Multiple Projects from FY 13 through FY 16 
SSP – Multiple Projects from FY 13 through FY 16 
CDBG RA – Multiple Projects from FY 13 through FY 16 
 

10.  Location (Street address, city, county state) 
Locations will vary throughout Gila County, with the exclusions of Indian 
Reservations and Floodplains. 
 
 
 

 
11. Program Activity/Project Description 

 
CDBG – Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation on a minimum 6 projects per contract per Fiscal Year 
SSP - Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation on a minimum 6 projects per contract per Fiscal Year 
CDBG RA - Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation on a minimum 2 projects per contract per Fiscal Year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rev. 12/2012   2 

Part 2. Environmental Certification (to be completed by Responsible Entity) 
 
With reference to the above Program Activity(ies)/Project(s), I, the undersigned officer of the Responsible Entity, certify that: 
 

1. The Responsible Entity has fully carried out its responsibilities for environmental review, decision-making and action pertaining to the Project(s) 
named above. 

2. The Responsible Entity has assumed responsibility for and complied with and will continue to comply with, the National Environmental Policy Act 
of 1969, as amended, and the environmental procedures, permit requirements and statutory obligations of the laws cited in 24 CFR 58.5; and 
also agrees to comply with the authorities in 24 CFR 58.6 and applicable State and local laws. 

3. The responsible entity has assumed responsibility for and complied with and will continue to comply with Section 106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act, and its implementing regulations 36 CFR 800, including consultation with the State Historic Preservation Officer, Indian tribes 
and Native Hawaiian organizations, and the public. 

4. After considering the type and degree of environmental effects identified by the environmental review completed for the proposed project 
described in Part 1 of this request, I have found that the proposal   did   did not require the preparation and dissemination of an 
environmental impact statement. 

5. The Responsible Entity has disseminated and/or published in the manner prescribed by 24 CFR 58.43 and 58.55 a notice to the public in 
accordance with 24 CFR 58.70 and as evidenced by the attached copy (copies) or evidence of posting and mailing procedure. 

6. The dates for all statutory and regulatory time periods for review, comment or other action are in compliance with procedures and requirements 
of 24 CFR Part 58. 

7. In accordance with 24 CFR 58.71(b), the Responsible Entity will advise the recipient (if different from the Responsible Entity) of any special 
environmental conditions that must be adhered to in carrying out the project.   

 
 As the duly designated Certifying Official of the Responsible Entity, I also certify that: 
 

8. I am authorized to and do consent to assume the status of Federal official under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 and each 
provision of law designated in the 24CFR 58.5 list of NEPA-related authorities insofar as the provisions of these laws apply to the HUD 
responsibilities for environmental review, decision-making and action that have been assumed by the Responsible Entity. 

9. I am authorized to and do accept, on behalf of the recipient personally, the jurisdiction of the Federal courts for the enforcement of all these 
responsibilities, in my capacity as Certifying Officer of the Responsible Entity. 

 
 
Signature of Certifying Officer of the Responsible Entity 
 
 
 

x 

Title of Certifying Officer 
Michael A. Pastor, 
Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 
Date Signed 
July 1, 2014 

Address of Certifying Officer 
1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, Arizona 85501  
 
 
 
 
 

Part 3. To be completed when the Recipient is not the Responsible Entity 
The recipient requests the release of funds for the programs and activities identified in Part 1 and agrees to abide by the special conditions procedures and 
requirements of the environmental review and to advise the responsible entity of any proposed change in the scope of the project or any change in environmental 
conditions in accordance with 24 CFR 58.71(b). 
 

Signature of Authorized Officer of the Recipient 
 
 
 

x 
 

Title of Authorized Officer 
      
 
 
Date Signed 
      

WARNING: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; U.S.C. 
3729, 3802) 
 
PREVIOUS EDITIONS ARE OBSOLETE 
 
 



   

ARF-2635     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc., Special Event Liquor License Applications for
September 12-14,  and September 20, 2014

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a special event
for up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(DLLC) approves all liquor-related applications; however, part of the DLLC's process
requires that the local governing body review the application and submit a
recommendation for approval or disapproval to the DLLC for any establishment
located within the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the attached applications and has
determined that they have been completed correctly.

Conclusion
This civic organization properly completed the application.  If the Board of
Supervisors approves this application and final approval is given by the Department,
the Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc., will have used 4 days of the allowable 10
days per year to serve liquor at a special event in 2014.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve these
applications to allow the Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc., to serve liquor at the
Fire on the Rim Mountain Bike Race fund-raising event on September 12-14, 2014,
and the fund-raising dinner to benefit Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction wildfire
prevention programs to be held on September 20, 2014.

Suggested Motion
Approval of two Special Event Liquor License Applications submitted by Pine
Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc. to serve liquor at the Fire on the Rim Mountain Bike
Race fund-raising event to be held September 12-14, 2014, and the fund-raising
dinner to benefit Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction wildfire prevention programs to be
held on September 20, 2014.

Attachments



Special Event Application 9-12-14-2014
Special Event Application 9-20-2014























   

ARF-2622     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library Special Event Liquor License Application for
October 11, 2014

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a special event
for up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(DLLC) approves all liquor-related applications; however, part of the DLLC's process
requires that the local governing body review the application and submit a
recommendation for approval or disapproval to the DLLC for any establishment
located within the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the attached application and has
determined that it has been completed correctly.

Conclusion
This charitable organization properly completed the application.  If the Board of
Supervisors approves this application and final approval is given by the DLLC, the
Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library of Pine, Arizona, will have used 1 day of the
allowable 10 days to serve liquor at a special event in 2014.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
application to allow the Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library to serve liquor a
fund-raising event to be held at the Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library 6124 N.
Randall Place, in Pine, Arizona to be held on October 11, 2014.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by the Isabelle Hunt
Memorial Public Library of Pine, Arizona, to serve liquor at a fund-raising event to be
held on October 11, 2014.

Attachments
Isabelle Hunt Special Event Liquor License Application











   

ARF-2637     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Sarah White,
Chief
Administrative
Officer

Submitted By:
Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors

Department: Sheriff's Office

Information
Request/Subject
CORPS Local Boards Updated Membership

Background Information
Gila County has two local boards that oversee the Correctional Officers Retirement
Plan (CORP) of which certain Sheriff's Office employees are enrolled. One local board
is for Dispatchers of the Gila County Sheriff's Office, and one local board is for
Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers of the Gila County Sheriff's Office. 

Per A.R.S. §38-893, these local boards are comprised of the following membership: 
the Chairman of the Gila County Board of Supervisors (BOS) or another Supervisor as
recommended by the Chairman and appointed by the BOS; a Citizen who must be the
head of the local governing board's personnel commission and is appointed by the
BOS; one other Citizen who is appointed by the BOS; and two Members who are
elected by secret ballot by other Members of the local board and are presented to the
BOS for its "acknowledgment" of the new member's appointment or re-appointment.

Evaluation
A review of these local boards has been conducted and it was realized that there needs
to be some one-time adjustments to board members' dates of service in order to align
with the correct terms of office.  Information for both local boards is being presented
to the BOS for the BOS to take action on two Citizens and to be informed of the status
of the elected Members for each local board.

Ophelia James, Chairman of the Gila County Personnel Commission, resigned from
the Personnel Commission on August 19, 2013.  Ms. James' term of office on both
local boards expired on December 31, 2013, so there is a vacancy on both local boards
which needs to be filled by the head of the Gila County Personnel Commission.  Ken
Volz is currently the Chairman of the Personnel Commission, so he needs to be
appointed to both local boards.

Ed Carpenter has served as a Citizen on both local boards for many years.  His
current term is due to expire on November 1, 2014.  In order to align his term of
service with the correct term of office, Mr. Carpenter needs to be reappointed to serve
from November 2, 2014, through December 31, 2015.

Conclusion



The BOS is being requested to re-appoint Ed Carpenter, represented on both local
boards as a Citizen, for the term beginning  November 2, 2014, through December 31,
2015.  This will be a one-time adjustment to align Mr. Carpenter's term with the
correct term of office, which is January 1, 2012, through December 31, 2015.

The BOS is also being requested to appoint Ken Volz, Chairman of the Gila County
Personnel Commission, to fill a vacancy on both local boards and to be represented as
a Citizen, who is the head of the local governing body's personnel commission.  His
term of service will be July 1, 2014, through December 31, 2017.  His term of office
also ends on December 31, 2017.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the BOS approve the appointment of Ken Volz and
reappointment of Ed Carpenter to both local CORP boards.

Suggested Motion
Approval to appoint Ken Volz, represented as a Citizen and head of the Gila County
Personnel Commission, to the Correctional Officers Retirement Board (CORP) Local
Board for Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers and to the CORP Local
Board for Dispatchers to fill a vacancy for the term beginning July 1, 2014, through
December 31, 2017; and to re-appoint Ed Carpenter, represented as a Citizen, to the
same two CORP Local Boards for the term of November 2, 2014, through December
31, 2015, in order to align Mr. Carpenters' term of service with the correct term of
office.

Attachments
CORP Local Board for Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers
CORP Local Board for Dispatchers



 

CORRECTIONAL OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN LOCAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS- 

FOR GILA COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE DETENTION OFFICERS AND NON-UNIFORMED OFFICERS 

 (Proposed to the BOS on 7/1/14 and if approved, the list will be as follows) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Mike Pastor (appointed by 
BOS) 

B A (01/10/12) - 01/10/12-12/31/15 01/01/12-12/31/15 

Ophelia James-CITIZEN 
(appointed by BOS and head 
of Personnel Commission 

B A (01/10/12) - 01/10/12-01/09/14 
Resigned 08/19/13 

01/10/12-12/31/13 

Ken Volz-CITIZEN (appointed 
by BOS and head of 
Personnel Commission 

B B (07/01/14) 
(vacancy created by 
Ophelia James) 

- 07/01/14- 12/31/17 01/01/14-12/31/17 

Ed Carpenter-CITIZEN 
(appointed by BOS) 

B C (07/01/14) 11 years 11/02/10-11/01/14 
11/02/14-12/31/15 
(a one-time adjustment 
to align with term of 
office) 

01/01/12-12/31/15 

Swede Carlson-MEMBER 
(elected by Plan members) 
(An election needs to be held 
to either re-elect Swede or 
another Plan member to 
serve until 12/31/15.  This 
will be a one-time adjustment 
to the term of incumbent to 
align with the term of office 
through 12/31/15.) 

C C (01/10/12) 9 years? 04/08/10-04/07/12 
(3/13/13 minutes state 
he was re-elected from 
5/21/12 to 5/21/14.)  
 

01/01/12-12/31/15 
This will be the 
corrected term. 

Richard Hobson-MEMBER 
(elected by Plan members) 
(An election needs to be held 
to either re-elect Richard or 
another Plan member to 
serve until 12/31/17.  This 
will be a one-time adjustment 
to the term of incumbent to 

C A (01/10/12) - 04/08/10-04/07/14 
(This term expired and 
there is no record of an 
election being held to 
re-appoint him.) 

01/01/14-12/31/17 
This will be the 
corrected term. 



align with the term of office 
through 12/31/17.) 
 

1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation: August 16, 2004  
B. The powers and duties of the Local Board are outlined in A.R.S. §38-893. 
C. The Local Board is comprised of 5 members of which one member represents the Board of Supervisors (BOS) Chairman and is appointed by the BOS; 2 members represent “Citizens” and 

are appointed by the BOS; and 2 members are elected by secret ballot by those members of the CORP and who are employees of Gila County.  The BOS “acknowledges” those 2 board 
member appointments. 

D. Per statute, terms of office are for 4 years, with terms staggered  2 years apart so that 1 Member’s and 1 Citizen’s term of office will end on the same date; and the other Member’s and 
Citizen’s term of office will end on the same date 2 years apart from the other Member and Citizen.  Note:  Some one-time adjustments will be made to the terms of incumbent and terms 
of office in order to align this board with statutory requirements.    
 

2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 



 

CORRECTIONAL OFFICERS RETIREMENT PLAN LOCAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS- 

FOR GILA COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE DISPATCHERS 

 (Proposed to the BOS on 7/1/14 and if approved, the list will be as follows) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Mike Pastor (appointed by 
BOS) 

B A (01/10/12) - 01/10/12-12/31/15 01/01/12-12/31/15 

Ophelia James-CITIZEN 
(appointed by BOS and head 
of Personnel Commission 

B A (01/10/12) - 01/10/12-01/09/14 
Resigned 08/19/13 

01/10/12-12/31/13 

Ken Volz-CITIZEN (appointed 
by BOS and head of 
Personnel Commission 

B B (07/01/14) 
(vacancy created by 
Ophelia James) 

- 07/01/14- 12/31/17 01/01/14-12/31/17 

Ed Carpenter-CITIZEN 
(appointed by BOS) 

B C (07/01/14) 11 years 11/02/10-11/01/14 
11/02/14-12/31/15 
(a one-time adjustment 
to align with term of 
office) 

01/01/12-12/31/15 

Lyndi Lopez-MEMBER 
(elected by Plan members) 
VACANCY 

C A (01/10/12) - 04/08/10-04/07/12 
(7/9/13 minutes state 
she was re-elected but 
didn’t state the term.) 
Resigned from Gila 
County on 11/3/13.  An 
election will be held to 
fill this vacancy through 
12/31/17. 

01/01/14-12/31/17 
This will be the 
corrected term. 

Chadwick Peters-MEMBER 
(elected by Plan members) 
VACANCY 

C A (01/10/12) - 04/08/10-04/07/14  
Resigned from Gila 
County on 2/5/14. 
An election will be held 
to fill this vacancy 
through 12/31/15. 

01/01/14-12/31/15 
This will be the 
corrected term. 

 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation: August 16, 2004  



B. The powers and duties of the Local Board are outlined in A.R.S. §38-893. 
C. The Local Board is comprised of 5 members of which one member represents the Board of Supervisors (BOS) Chairman and is appointed by the BOS; 2 members represent “Citizens” and 

are appointed by the BOS; and 2 members are elected by secret ballot by those members of the CORP and who are employees of Gila County.  The BOS “acknowledges” those 2 board 
member appointments. 

D. Per statute, terms of office are for 4 years, with terms staggered  2 years apart so that 1 Member’s and 1 Citizen’s term of office will end on the same date; and the other Member’s and 
Citizen’s term of office will end on the same date 2 years apart from the other Member and Citizen.  Note:  Some one-time adjustments will be made to the terms of incumbent and terms 
of office in order to align this board with statutory requirements.    
 

2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 



   

ARF-2615     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Eric Mariscal,
Elections
Director

Submitted By: Cate Gore, Administrative Clerk,
Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
East Verde Park Fire District Governing Board Appointment.

Background Information
A.R.S. 48-803 (B) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than
from expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by the
appointment of an interim member. 

Evaluation
At the East Verde Park Fire District Governing Board meeting of April 21, 2014, the
Governing Board appointed Ardith L. Hogan to complete Mary Cambier's term of
office, who passed away, which expires on December 31, 2016.  

Conclusion
Ardith L. Hogan has agreed to serve out the term of Mary Cambier.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge
the the appointment of Ardith L. Hogan as the new governing board member for the
East Verde Park Fire District.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the appointment of Ardith Hogan to the East Verde Park Fire
District Governing Board to complete Mary Cambier's unexpired term of office through
December 31, 2016.

Attachments
East Verde Park



















   

ARF-2638     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Reporting
Period:

February 2014 and May 2014

Submitted For: Dorothy Little Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the
Peace-Payson Region, Justice
Court-Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Reports for February 2014 and
May 2014

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2014 and May 2014 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
May 2014
February 2014











PAYSON JUSTICE COURT TREASURER'S RECAP FY2013

MAY, 2014 AZTEC ACCOUNT ACCOUNT TOTAL AMOUNT 5% FILL THE GAP ADJUSTED

FUND NAME CODE CODE CODE ALLOCATED SET ASIDE BALANCE

Alternative Dispute Resolution ZADR 0848000-000-000-2061-00 T848-2061 92.70$                     4.64$                       88.06$                     

Arson Detection Reward Fund 41-2167D ZADRF 0901000-000-000-2061-00 T901-2061 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Attorney Fee Reimbursement ZATT 1005000-314-000-3400-11 X10501314004383 48.74$                     48.74$                     

Confidential Address Assessment - State Treasurer ZCAA1 0884000-000-000-2061-00 142.50$                   7.13$                       135.37$                   

Confidential Address Assessment - Local ZCAA2 1005000-302-000-3800.30 7.50$                       0.38$                       7.12$                       

Citizens Clean Elections ZCEF 0888000-000-000-2061-00 T888-2061 1,187.00$               1,187.00$               

Criminal Justice Enhancement 67% ZCJEF 0812000-000-000-2061-00 T812-2061 5,578.18$               278.91$                   5,299.27$               

Defensive Driving Diversion Fee ZDDS 1005000-314-000-3400-90 X105-4609 1,820.00$               91.00$                     1,729.00$               

DNA State Surcharge 3% 12-116.01C ZDNAS 0872000-000-000-2061-00 T872-2061 698.03$                   34.90$                     663.13$                   

Elected Officials Retirement Fund 15.30% ZEORF 0801000-000-000-2061-00 T801-2061 694.04$                   34.70$                     659.34$                   

Base Fees (General Fund) ZFEE 1005000-314-000-3400-15 X105-4615 2,188.18$               109.41$                   2,078.77$               

Base Fines (General Fund) ZFINE 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 10,852.54$             542.63$                   10,309.91$             

Fill the Gap Surcharge 7% ZFTGS 0870000-000-000-2061-00 T870-2061 830.64$                   41.53$                     789.11$                   

Failure To Pay Warrant Surcharge 10% ZFTPS 1005000-314-000-3400-17 X10501314004861 150.91$                   7.55$                       143.36$                   

Extra DUI Assessment $500 ZGFDU 0912000-000-000-2061-00 T912-2061 1,517.07$               75.85$                     1,441.22$               

Judicial Collection Enhancement $7 ZJCL 4741000-314-000-3400-15 X36001314004615 360.27$                   360.27$                   

Judicial Collection Enhancement Local % ZJCLF 4741000-314-000-3400-15 X36001314004615 308.63$                   15.43$                     293.20$                   

Judicial Collection Enhancement $13 ZJCS 0818000-000-000-2061-00 T818-2061 669.06$                   669.06$                   

Judicial Collection Enhancement %PC ZJCSF 0840000-000-000-2061-00 T840-2061 706.53$                   35.33$                     671.20$                   

Jail (Incarceration) Fees ZJF 1005000-300-340-3405-40 X10502340004651 2,250.31$               2,250.31$               

Local Costs ZLCL 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Administrative Costs ZMISC 1005000-314-000-3400-99 X105-4886 894.92$                   44.75$                     850.17$                   

Medical Services Enhancement 13% ZMSEF 0813000-000-000-2061-00 T813-2061 1,542.94$               77.15$                     1,465.79$               

2011 Additional Assessment - State Treasurer ZOS1 0930000-000-000-2061-00 1,513.53$               75.68$                     1,437.85$               

2011 Additional Assessment - County Treasurer ZOS2 0931000-000-000-2061-00 189.16$                   9.46$                       179.70$                   

Officer Safety Equipment - City Police (CP) ZOS3 0932000-000-000-2061-00 1.67$                       0.08$                       1.59$                       

Officer Safety Equipment - Sheriff (SHF) ZOS4 0933000-000-000-2061-00 90.50$                     4.53$                       85.97$                     

Officer Safety Equipment - DPS (DPS) ZOS5 0934000-000-000-2061-00 648.64$                   32.43$                     616.21$                   

Officer Safety Equipment - MVD/ADOT (MVD) ZOS6 0935000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety Equipment - Game and Fish (GF) ZOS7 0936000-000-000-2061-00 12.00$                     0.60$                       11.40$                     

Officer Safety - Registrar of Contractors (ROC) ZOS8 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety Equipment - Animal Control (AC) ZOS10 0942000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety -  Tonto Apache Police (TAR) ZOS15 0950000-000-000-2061-00 4.00$                       0.20$                       3.80$                       

Officer Safety - Department of Agriculture ZOS17 0951000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Overpayment Forfeited ZOVF 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 21.52$                     1.08$                       20.44$                     

Adult Probation Fee ZPBA 4042000-335-000-3405-30 X25001335-4835 400.00$                   20.00$                     380.00$                   

Probation Surcharge 2006 ($10.00) ZPRS6 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 73.02$                     3.65$                       69.37$                     

Probation Surcharge 2009 ($20.00) ZPRS9 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 3,858.52$               192.93$                   3,665.59$               

Probation Surcharge $5.00 ZPRSU 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 27.25$                     1.36$                       25.89$                     

Public Safety Equipment ZPSEF 0912000-000-000-2061-00 T912-2061 2,183.00$               109.15$                   2,073.85$               

Reimbursement to County Attorney 60% ZREIM 3544000-301-000-3400-11 X18201301004777 871.91$                   871.91$                   

Reimbursement to Superior Court 40% ZREIM 4574000-333-000-3400-16 X226333004864 581.26$                   581.26$                   

Security Enhancement Fee (Local) ZSECE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Technical Registration Fund ($15 Drug Offenses) ZTECH 0833000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Warrant Fee (Local) ZWAR 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 -$                         -$                         -$                         

AZ Native Plant Fund ZANP STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Child Passenger Restraint ZCPRF STATE 28.67$                     1.43$                       27.24$                     

Drug and Gang Enforcement Fines ZDECJ STATE 790.78$                   39.54$                     751.24$                   

DUI Abatement ZDUIA STATE 250.00$                   12.50$                     237.50$                   

Domestic Violence Shelter Fund ZDVSF STATE 150.00$                   7.50$                       142.50$                   

FARE Special Collection Fee 19% ZFAR1 STATE 1,237.04$               1,237.04$               

FARE Delinquency Fee $35.00 ZFAR2 STATE 651.99$                   651.99$                   

Game and Fish - Wildlife ZGF STATE 107.16$                   5.36$                       101.80$                   

HURF 1 28-5438, 2533C ZHRF1 STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

HURF 3 28-5433C, 4139 ZHRF3 STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

HURF - to DPS ZHRFD STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Prison Construction Fund ZPCOF STATE 3,187.82$               159.39$                   3,028.43$               

Registrar of Contractors ZRCA STATE 53.80$                     2.69$                       51.11$                     

State Highway Fund ZSHWY STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

State Highway Work Zone Fund ZSHWZ STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Display Suspended Plates (DPS) ZSLPD STATE 36.24$                     1.81$                       34.43$                     

State Photo Enforcement Base Fine ZSPBF STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

State Photo Enforcement Clean Election Surcharge ZSPCE STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Bad Check Program - County Attorney ZBAD COUNTY ATTY -$                         -$                         

HURF - to Sheriff's Office 28-5533G ZHRFS SHERIFF -$                         -$                         -$                         

Display Suspended Plates (Sheriff's Office) ZSLPS SHERIFF -$                         -$                         -$                         

HURF - to City Police ZHRFC CITY POLICE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Display Suspended Plates (City Police) ZSLPC CITY POLICE -$                         -$                         -$                         

TOTALS 49,510.17$             2,082.66$               47,427.51$             

47,427.51$             

DATE CHECK NO. AMOUNT MONTHLY REMITTANCE TO:

5134 43,246.89$              GILA COUNTY TREASURER

5135 6,263.28$                ARIZONA STATE TREASURER

-$                         GILA COUNTY BAD CHECK PROGRAM

-$                         SHERIFF SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

-$                         CITY POLICE SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

49,510.17$                  TOTAL DISTRIBUTIONS THIS MONTH

I, DOROTHY A. LITTLE, Gila County Justice of the Peace, do hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the funds collected by Payson Justice Court for MAY, 2014.

___________________________________

DOROTHY A. LITTLE

Gila County Justice of the Peace

TOTAL ADJUSTED BALANCE VERIFICATION

6/2/14











PAYSON JUSTICE COURT TREASURER'S RECAP FY2013

FEBRUARY, 2014 AZTEC ACCOUNT ACCOUNT TOTAL AMOUNT 5% FILL THE GAP ADJUSTED

FUND NAME CODE CODE CODE ALLOCATED SET ASIDE BALANCE

Alternative Dispute Resolution ZADR 0848000-000-000-2061-00 T848-2061 65.58$                     3.28$                       62.30$                     

Arson Detection Reward Fund 41-2167D ZADRF 0901000-000-000-2061-00 T901-2061 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Attorney Fee Reimbursement ZATT 1005000-314-000-3400-11 X10501314004383 78.21$                     78.21$                     

Confidential Address Assessment - State Treasurer ZCAA1 0884000-000-000-2061-00 61.75$                     3.09$                       58.66$                     

Confidential Address Assessment - Local ZCAA2 1005000-302-000-3800.30 3.25$                       0.16$                       3.09$                       

Citizens Clean Elections ZCEF 0888000-000-000-2061-00 T888-2061 1,423.81$               1,423.81$               

Criminal Justice Enhancement 67% ZCJEF 0812000-000-000-2061-00 T812-2061 6,690.78$               334.54$                   6,356.24$               

Defensive Driving Diversion Fee ZDDS 1005000-314-000-3400-90 X105-4609 2,170.00$               108.50$                   2,061.50$               

DNA State Surcharge 3% 12-116.01C ZDNAS 0872000-000-000-2061-00 T872-2061 859.65$                   42.98$                     816.67$                   

Elected Officials Retirement Fund 15.30% ZEORF 0801000-000-000-2061-00 T801-2061 490.81$                   24.54$                     466.27$                   

Base Fees (General Fund) ZFEE 1005000-314-000-3400-15 X105-4615 1,645.22$               82.26$                     1,562.96$               

Base Fines (General Fund) ZFINE 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 13,224.04$             661.20$                   12,562.84$             

Fill the Gap Surcharge 7% ZFTGS 0870000-000-000-2061-00 T870-2061 996.38$                   49.82$                     946.56$                   

Failure To Pay Warrant Surcharge 10% ZFTPS 1005000-314-000-3400-17 X10501314004861 139.30$                   6.97$                       132.33$                   

Extra DUI Assessment $500 ZGFDU 0912000-000-000-2061-00 T912-2061 1,742.64$               87.13$                     1,655.51$               

Judicial Collection Enhancement $7 ZJCL 4741000-314-000-3400-15 X36001314004615 563.31$                   563.31$                   

Judicial Collection Enhancement Local % ZJCLF 4741000-314-000-3400-15 X36001314004615 218.29$                   10.91$                     207.38$                   

Judicial Collection Enhancement $13 ZJCS 0818000-000-000-2061-00 T818-2061 1,046.13$               1,046.13$               

Judicial Collection Enhancement %PC ZJCSF 0840000-000-000-2061-00 T840-2061 499.57$                   24.98$                     474.59$                   

Jail (Incarceration) Fees ZJF 1005000-300-340-3405-40 X10502340004651 1,116.00$               1,116.00$               

Local Costs ZLCL 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Administrative Costs ZMISC 1005000-314-000-3400-99 X105-4886 387.53$                   19.38$                     368.15$                   

Medical Services Enhancement 13% ZMSEF 0813000-000-000-2061-00 T813-2061 1,850.64$               92.53$                     1,758.11$               

2011 Additional Assessment - State Treasurer ZOS1 0930000-000-000-2061-00 1,810.79$               90.54$                     1,720.25$               

2011 Additional Assessment - County Treasurer ZOS2 0931000-000-000-2061-00 226.31$                   11.32$                     214.99$                   

Officer Safety Equipment - City Police (CP) ZOS3 0932000-000-000-2061-00 5.50$                       0.28$                       5.22$                       

Officer Safety Equipment - Sheriff (SHF) ZOS4 0933000-000-000-2061-00 170.75$                   8.54$                       162.21$                   

Officer Safety Equipment - DPS (DPS) ZOS5 0934000-000-000-2061-00 724.27$                   36.21$                     688.06$                   

Officer Safety Equipment - MVD/ADOT (MVD) ZOS6 0935000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety Equipment - Game and Fish (GF) ZOS7 0936000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety - Registrar of Contractors (ROC) ZOS8 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety Equipment - Animal Control (AC) ZOS10 0942000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety -  Tonto Apache Police (TAR) ZOS15 0950000-000-000-2061-00 5.00$                       0.25$                       4.75$                       

Officer Safety - Department of Agriculture ZOS17 0951000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Overpayment Forfeited ZOVF 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 20.43$                     1.02$                       19.41$                     

Adult Probation Fee ZPBA 4042000-335-000-3405-30 X25001335-4835 100.00$                   5.00$                       95.00$                     

Probation Surcharge 2006 ($10.00) ZPRS6 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 97.91$                     4.90$                       93.01$                     

Probation Surcharge 2009 ($20.00) ZPRS9 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 4,670.77$               233.54$                   4,437.23$               

Probation Surcharge $5.00 ZPRSU 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 8.07$                       0.40$                       7.67$                       

Public Safety Equipment ZPSEF 0912000-000-000-2061-00 T912-2061 901.00$                   45.05$                     855.95$                   

Reimbursement to County Attorney 60% ZREIM 3544000-301-000-3400-11 X18201301004777 1,295.74$               1,295.74$               

Reimbursement to Superior Court 40% ZREIM 4574000-333-000-3400-16 X226333004864 863.82$                   863.82$                   

Security Enhancement Fee (Local) ZSECE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Technical Registration Fund ($15 Drug Offenses) ZTECH 0833000-000-000-2061-00 30.00$                     1.50$                       28.50$                     

Warrant Fee (Local) ZWAR 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 -$                         -$                         -$                         

AZ Native Plant Fund ZANP STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Child Passenger Restraint ZCPRF STATE 180.38$                   9.02$                       171.36$                   

Drug and Gang Enforcement Fines ZDECJ STATE 513.65$                   25.68$                     487.97$                   

DUI Abatement ZDUIA STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Domestic Violence Shelter Fund ZDVSF STATE 65.00$                     3.25$                       61.75$                     

FARE Special Collection Fee 19% ZFAR1 STATE 2,038.85$               2,038.85$               

FARE Delinquency Fee $35.00 ZFAR2 STATE 1,305.81$               1,305.81$               

Game and Fish - Wildlife ZGF STATE 50.27$                     2.51$                       47.76$                     

HURF 1 28-5438, 2533C ZHRF1 STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

HURF 3 28-5433C, 4139 ZHRF3 STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

HURF - to DPS ZHRFD STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Prison Construction Fund ZPCOF STATE 2,634.89$               131.74$                   2,503.15$               

Registrar of Contractors ZRCA STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

State Highway Fund ZSHWY STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

State Highway Work Zone Fund ZSHWZ STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Display Suspended Plates (DPS) ZSLPD STATE 26.17$                     1.31$                       24.86$                     

State Photo Enforcement Base Fine ZSPBF STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

State Photo Enforcement Clean Election Surcharge ZSPCE STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Bad Check Program - County Attorney ZBAD COUNTY ATTY 75.00$                     75.00$                     

HURF - to Sheriff's Office 28-5533G ZHRFS SHERIFF -$                         -$                         -$                         

Display Suspended Plates (Sheriff's Office) ZSLPS SHERIFF 237.82$                   11.89$                     225.93$                   

HURF - to City Police ZHRFC CITY POLICE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Display Suspended Plates (City Police) ZSLPC CITY POLICE -$                         -$                         -$                         

TOTALS 53,331.09$             2,176.22$               51,154.87$             

51,154.87$             

DATE CHECK NO. AMOUNT MONTHLY REMITTANCE TO:

5081 46,388.65$              GILA COUNTY TREASURER

5082 6,641.51$                ARIZONA STATE TREASURER

5083 75.00$                     GILA COUNTY BAD CHECK PROGRAM

5084 225.93$                   SHERIFF SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

-$                         CITY POLICE SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

53,331.09$                  TOTAL DISTRIBUTIONS THIS MONTH

I, DOROTHY A. LITTLE, Gila County Justice of the Peace, do hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the funds collected by Payson Justice Court for FEBRUARY, 2014.

___________________________________

DOROTHY A. LITTLE

Gila County Justice of the Peace

TOTAL ADJUSTED BALANCE VERIFICATION

3/6/14



   

ARF-2623     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for April 2014

Submitted For: Kaycee
Stratton

Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Chief Deputy Recorder,
Recorder's Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for April 2014 

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the April 2014 monthly activity report submitted by the Recorder's
Office.

Attachments
Recorder's April 2014 Monthly Report





















   

ARF-2632     Consent Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Reporting
Period:

Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Report for the Month of May 2014

Submitted For: Anita
Escobedo

Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the
Superior Court, Clerk of the Superior
Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for May 2014

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted by the Clerk of
the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk of Court report for May 2014





















   

ARF-2643     Consent Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Reporting
Period:

May 27, 2014 and June 3, 2014

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Information
Subject
May 27, 2014, and June 3, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the May 27, 2014, and June 3, 2014, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

Attachments
BOS 06-03-14 Meeting Minutes
BOS 05-27-14 Meeting Minutes



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  June 3, 2014 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal; Marian E. Sheppard, 
Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.   
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  

  
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 1:30 p.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Sheriff Shepherd led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Anthony Garrisi of the First Baptist Church in 
Payson delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  
 
A.  Public recognition of four employees for May's "Spotlight on 
Employees" Program, as follows:  John Dzera, George Hernandez, Curtis 
Johnson and Austin Payne.   
 
Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Senior, read aloud the Spotlight 
on Employees Program nomination letter submitted by Michael A. Pastor, 
District 2 Supervisor, which highlighted the professionalism and integrity 
exhibited by the Gila County employees listed above for the return of computer 
equipment that was found during the course of the work day, which belonged 
to the Miami School District. 
 
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-03 to 
name a previously unnamed section of road in Globe as E. James Dean 
Trail.  
 

Page 1 of 12 
 



Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated a public notice was 
mailed to surrounding property owners advising them of the proposed road 
name, which was in accordance with the requirements of Gila County Street 
Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance No. 11-03.  The public notice 
contained a map of the area, the date for filing objections and the date 
scheduled for the public hearing before the Board of Supervisors.  No written 
objections were received nor were there any alternative street names offered 
within the deadline for such submissions.   
 
Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and no comments were received; 
therefore, he closed the public hearing.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted 
Resolution No. 14-06-03 to name a previously unnamed section of road in 
Globe as E. James Dean Trail.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on 
file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-04 
which approves Gila County Planning & Zoning Department Case No. Z-14-
01, an application submitted by Beau Woodring to rezone tax parcel 
number 301-19-055B located in Pine from R1-D12 (Single Family 
Residential with a minimum residential lot size of 12,000 square feet) and 
TR (Transitional Residential) to C2 (Commercial) in order to establish a 
retail store on the property.   
 
Bob Gould, Community Development Division Director, provided background 
information regarding this application.  He read aloud the concerns of the local 
citizens.  He advised that the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public 
hearing on May 15, 2014, to review this application and it has issued an 
approval recommendation to the Board of Supervisors contingent on the 
stipulations being met as stated in the departmental staff report. 
 
Public participation forms were submitted by Mitzi Paul of Strawberry, Arizona, 
Cindy Maack of Pine, Arizona, Maureen Pastika of Pine, Arizona, and Maher 
Hazine of Strawberry, Arizona.  Each of the citizens voiced concerns and 
opposition to the aforementioned application.  A summary of the concerns 
include; increased ingress and egress traffic posing a hazard to the highway; 
the potential of having a vacant building for lack of business during the winter 
months; poor visibility of, and lack of signage to notify residents of the 
application; a desire to keep the status quo with regard to peace and quiet; 
wastewater issues; fire issues; fear that what is proposed initially, would not be 
developed finally with regard to the application.   
 
Beau Woodring of Southwest General Development of Scottsdale, Arizona and 
who is the applicant, explained that a community meeting was held a couple of 
months ago at which time citizens voiced a number of concerns.   
 

Page 2 of 12 
 



In working with the citizens and the Planning and Zoning Commission, Mr. 
Woodring advised that those concerns have since been addressed.  With regard 
to the citizens’ concern that the building would someday be vacant; Mr. 
Woodring advised that there is a 15-year lease on the building, which will 
generate approximately $50,000 per year in sales tax revenue with an 
additional approximate amount of $10,000 per year being generated for 
property taxes.  Over the life of the lease, that would generate additional 
revenue of approximately $750,000 within the County.  He assured the Board 
and audience that the building would not be empty.  With regard to the 
concern of increased traffic, Mr. Woodring advised that a Traffic Impact 
Statement has been generated and submitted to the Arizona Department of 
Transportation (ADOT).  ADOT has viewed and approved the site entrance off of 
the highway and has also reviewed the Traffic Impact Statement.  He stated 
that the requested zoning of C2 is harmonious with surrounding properties 
that have the same zoning designation, all of which are highway frontage land.  
He emphasized that he is in agreement with all of the stipulations of approval 
that were outlined by the Planning and Zoning Commission.  He also agreed to 
add to one of the stipulations an 18-month reversionary clause as discussed.     
 
Mr. Gould added for clarification that upon Board of Supervisors’ approval, it 
would be wise to include a reversionary clause; however, he thinks that 18 
months does not provide an adequate amount of time, so he suggested a time 
period of 2 years or 3 years.  Mr. Gould agreed to modify the language in the 
resolution to state “selling” alcoholic beverages rather than “serving” alcoholic 
beverages.  He also stated that he and his staff would review the public notice 
requirements with regard to rezoning requests.  Mr. Gould further stated that 
he believes that a lot of local citizens were aware of this requested rezoning on 
the subject parcel.  He advised that a public hearing notice was published in 
the 2014 official newspaper of the County, which is the Arizona Silver Belt 
newspaper.  He stated that it would have been preferred to publish the same 
notice in the Payson Roundup newspaper as an added courtesy to the local 
residents; however, due to the cost being approximately 2 to 3 times that of the 
official newspaper of the County it was cost prohibitive.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti asked Mr. Woodring to clarify his association with Dollar 
General.  Mr. Woodring replied that his employer, Southwest General 
Development, is developing this property for Dollar General Corporation.   
 
Due to the concerns voiced by the citizens, the Board agreed to continue this 
issue to its July 15, 2014, meeting.  In preparation for the July meeting, Mr. 
Gould advised that he would review this application again with the Planning 
and Zoning Commission to add the 18-month reversionary clause and change 
the stipulation from “serving alcohol” to “selling alcohol”; he would arrange for 
a community meeting to be held in Pine prior to the July Board meeting; and 
he would place a larger public hearing notice for the July Board of Supervisors’ 
meeting at the subject property.  Mr. Gould commented that his staff followed 

Page 3 of 12 
 



the same process with regard to providing notice of this public hearing in the 
same manner as all other similar applications, so he believes that ample notice 
was provided to the citizens; however, his staff will conduct a review of the 
entire public hearing process.  He also stated that public notices would be re-
sent to the citizens who may be affected by this application.   
 
There being no additional comments from the public, Chairman Pastor closed 
the public hearing.   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin the 
Board unanimously referred this item to the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and continued this item to the July 15, 2014, Board of Supervisors’ meeting.   
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission of an 
Application for FY 2014 State Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds in the amount of $113,139 that will be used for a proposed 
CDBG housing rehabilitation project in Gila County and an additional 
$300,000 in State Special Project funds that may be utilized for Owner-
Occupied Housing Rehabilitation for FY 2014, and adopt related 
Resolution Nos. 14-06-01, 14-06-02, and 14-05-02, which are included as 
part of this application.    
 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, requested that the 
Board approve this item to submit this application in order to receive federal 
funds that are disbursed via the Arizona Department of Housing and locally 
through the Central Arizona Association of Governments as stated above.  She 
added that the application process requires that a public hearing is held for 
both projects as stated above.   
 
Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and no comments were received; 
therefore, he closed the public hearing.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously authorized 
the submission of an Application for FY 2014 State Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) funds in the amount of $113,139 that will be used for a 
proposed CDBG housing rehabilitation project in Gila County and an 
additional $300,000 in State Special Project funds that may be utilized for 
Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation for FY 2014, and adopted related 
Resolution Nos. 14-06-01, 14-06-02, and 14-05-02, which are included as part 
of this application.  (Copies of the Resolutions are permanently on file in 
the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 4 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman's signature 
on Intergovernmental Agreement No. 101613 Consolidated 
Administration and Operation of Limited Jurisdiction Courts in order to 

Page 4 of 12 
 



provide a means for compensation from the Town of Miami to Gila County 
for the costs associated with the Magistrate Court utilizing Gila County 
facilities, personnel, equipment, supplies and overhead for the operation 
of the Magistrate Court to conduct Town of Miami business.   
 
Rebecca Baeza, Globe Justice Court Lead, requested approval of the 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Town of Miami to facilitate receipt 
of payment for services currently being provided to the Town of Miami with 
regard to court and business services.  She stated that the IGA also clearly 
states the terms and conditions of payment to the County and supersedes all 
other related agreements as referenced in the IGA.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti made a motion which was seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin; however, before the vote was taken, Don McDaniel, County Manager, 
advised of a correction in the IGA number; therefore, Chairman Pastor 
corrected the IGA number from 10163 (as stated in the original agenda item) to 
101613, which the Board unanimously approved.    
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to instruct staff to request additional 
and revised financial information from David Buckmaster ensuring the 
viability of the successful purchase and operation of the Roosevelt 
Lakeview Park, and to bring this item back to the Board when the 
information has been received, evaluated and is ready for Board of 
Supervisors' approval.   
 
Mr. Gould stated that per the Board of Supervisors’ direction provided at the 
May 6, 2014, Board meeting, this matter was continued until such time as all 
of the documents and financial information requested of the applicant David 
Buckmaster has been received by County staff.  To date, this has not occurred; 
therefore, it is recommended to again continue this item until such time as the 
information is received from Mr. Buckmaster.  Chairman Pastor requested that 
Mr. McDaniel assist in getting this item moving forward.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously continued this item and instructed staff to request 
additional and revised financial information from David Buckmaster ensuring 
the viability of the successful purchase and operation of the Roosevelt Lakeview 
Park, and to bring this item back to the Board when the information has been 
received, evaluated and is ready for Board of Supervisors' approval.   
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission of a State 
Housing Fund Application for Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 
Programs to the Arizona Department of Housing in the amount of 
$275,000 to be utilized for housing rehabilitation for fiscal year 2014, and 
to adopt related Resolution Nos. 14-04-03 and 14-04-04, which are 
included as part of the application.   

Page 5 of 12 
 



 
Ms. Buzan stated that the funds available from the Arizona Department of 
Housing have not been available for approximately two to three years as a 
result of State of Arizona legislative funding cuts.  At this time, there is funding 
available from the State combining state and federal monies which provide for 
this grant.  Supervisor Marcanti inquired if the County provided heating and 
cooling emergency services to the senior citizens of the County, to which Ms. 
Buzan stated replied in the affirmative.  The Housing Services Department has 
procedures and licensed contractors in place to help in situations that arise 
with regard to heating and cooling issues throughout all of Gila County.  
Chairman Pastor inquired as to the number of units that the $275,000 amount 
will assist and as to the number of citizens on the waiting list to receive 
housing rehabilitation services.  Ms. Buzan replied that the $275,000 will 
provide services for approximately 5 units and that the waiting list to receive 
such services is approximately 35 to 38 homes, families, and seniors in Gila 
County.  She added that the waiting list is monitored by the Arizona 
Department of Housing and she briefly explained the guidelines and basic 
criteria to be eligible to receive housing rehabilitation services via this program. 
 
Chairman Pastor advised Ms. Buzan to publish this information in the County 
newsletter, to which she agreed. 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board authorized the submission of a State Housing Fund Application for 
Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Programs to the Arizona Department 
of Housing in the amount of $275,000 to be utilized for housing rehabilitation 
for fiscal year 2014, and to adopt related Resolution Nos. 14-04-03 and 14-04-
04, which are included as part of the application.  (Copies of the Resolutions 
are permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Human Resources 
Action Items report, Classification & Compensation Study 
Implementation (Attachment A), including grade changes, title changes, 
and salary changes reflected in the Study in the amount of approximately 
$1,315,000, effective June 30, 2014, with changes to pay being reflected 
in employee paychecks dated July 18, 2014.   
 
Linda Eastlick, Human Resources Director, stated that the Classification and 
Compensation Study (Study) is complete and it is ready to be implemented 
after approximately a year of work and preparation.  Components of the Study 
included the following: conducting town hall meetings with employees, 
completing position description questionnaires, a supervisory review of the 
information that was received, completion of job descriptions, and an 
evaluation of jobs using numerous job complexity factors to develop grade 
changes, title changes and salary adjustments.  Additionally, employee 
recommended salaries were developed in accordance with the guidelines 

Page 6 of 12 
 



provided by the consultants.  The Board members expressed appreciation to 
Ms. Eastlick, Mr. McDaniel and all staff for the amount of time and effort they 
have invested in this endeavor.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved the 
Human Resources Action Items report, Classification & Compensation Study 
Implementation (Attachment A), including grade changes, title changes, and 
salary changes reflected in the Study in the amount of approximately 
$1,315,000, effective June 30, 2014, with changes to pay being reflected in 
employee paychecks dated July 18, 2014.   
 
Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of an Application for Contract Renewal FY15 to Contract 
Number 0014-0444 between Gila-Pinal Council for Senior Citizens 
(PGCSC), Area Agency on Aging, Region V, and Gila County Community 
Services, whereby PGCSC will allocate funding in the amount of $6,242 to 
provide home repairs and renovations to eligible citizens residing in Gila 
County for the period from July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015.  
 
B.  Acknowledgment of the resignation of Michael Peterson from the 
Canyon Fire District Governing Board and the appointment of Sterling 
White to complete the term of Mr. Peterson, which expires December 31, 
2016.  
 
C.  Acknowledgment of the April 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
D.  Acknowledgment of the April 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Constable's Office  
 
E.  Approval of the April 29, 2014, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 
F.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of May 
6, 2014, May 13, 2014, May 20, 2014, and May 27, 2014.  
 
MAY 6, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Kay St. Laurent – Superior Court Div. 1 – Judicial Assistant – 05/30/14 – 
General Fund – DOH 04/19/04 
2.  Simone Sheppard – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 05/02/14 – 
General Fund – DOH 01/06/14 
 
 

Page 7 of 12 
 



NEW HIRES: 
3.  Shealene Stidham – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 05/05/14 – 
General Fund – Replacing Melanie Boyer 
4.  Sally Denny – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 05/12/14 – General Fund 
– Replacing Prestina Preston-Lynch 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Christine Duarte – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Lieutenant – 
04/29/14 – General Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
6.  Daniel Lowe – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 04/28/14 – From 
State Aid Enhancement Fund – To Adult Intensive Probation Supervision Fund 
– Replacing Gretchen McAnerny 
7.  Gretchen McAnerny – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 04/28/14 – 
From Adult Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – To State Aid Enhancement 
Fund – Replacing Daniel Lowe 
8.  Jay Boyer – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer Supervisor – 04/28/14 – 
From Diversion Intake(.50)/Juvenile Intensive Probation Supervision (.50) 
Funds – To Diversion Intake Fund – Replacing Kimberly Bittner 
 
MAY 13, 2014 
NEW HIRES: 
1.  Bruce Myers – County Attorney’s Office – Detective – 05/13/14 – General 
Fund – Replacing Dana Lindsey 
2.  K. Todd Baty – County Attorney’s Office – Detective – 05/19/14 – Cost of 
Prosecution Fund – Replacing Kenneth Wortman 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
3.  Mary Stemm – Library District – Temporary Library Assistant Senior – 
04/28/14 – Library District Fund – Temporary employment  
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
4.  Brian Rogers – Public Works – Custodian (.85) – 05/18/14 – Facilities 
Management Fund 
5.  Patty Comstock – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Services Specialist – 
05/05/14 – General Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
6.  Kenneth Wortman – County Attorney’s Office – From Detective – To 
Diversion Officer – 05/19/14 – From Cost of Prosecution Fund – To Diversion 
Program CA Fund – Replacing Cheryl Sluyter 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
7.  Lisa Dzera- Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – To Administrative Clerk 
(Temporary Assignment) - 04/28/14 – General Fund – Temporary assignment  
8.  Joann Fane – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – To Administrative 
Clerk (Temporary Assignment) – 04/28/14 – General Fund – Temporary 
assignment 
9.  Paul Larkin – Payson Regional Justice Court – Judge Pro-Tempore – 
05/01/14 – General Fund – Correcting pay rate 
 

Page 8 of 12 
 



REQUEST TO POST: 
10.  Health and Emergency Services – Health Services Program Manager – 
Vacated by Lorraine Dalrymple 
11.  Superior Court – Judicial Assistant – Vacated by Kay St. Laurent 
 
12.  Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist (.50) – New 
grant funded position 
 
MAY 20, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Jeremy Schnepf – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser – 05/22/14 – 
General Fund – DOH 02/18/14 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
2.  Sarah White – Sheriff’s Office – Chief Administrative Officer – 05/20/14 – 
General Fund 
3.  Jenny Valenzuela – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 
06/16/14 – GEST Fund 
4.  Sarayl Shunkamolah – Board of Supervisors – Management Associate – 
06/09/14 – General Fund 
5.  Deeadra Ursin-Zachary – Health and Emergency Services – Community 
Health Assistant Senior – 05/12/14 – General Fund  
6.  Christian Leos – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary (underfill) – 
05/04/14 – General Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
7.  Joel McDaniel – Public Works – From Road Maintenance and Equipment 
Operator – To Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator Senior – 05/26/14 – 
Public Works Fund – Replacing Fred Lavin 
8.  Allison Torres – Community Services – From Administrative Clerk Senior – 
To Social Services Case Manager – 06/02/14 – From Various Funds – To CAP 
Fund – Replacing Maria Brusoe 
9.  Jamie Cunningham – Sheriff’s Office – From Detention Officer – To 
Detention Officer Sgt. – 05/26/14 – General Fund – Replacing Johnie Brake 
10.  Johnie Brake – Sheriff’s Office – From Detention Officer Sgt. (underfill) – To 
Detention Officer – 05/26/14 – General Fund – Replacing Jacob Martin 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
11.  Alberta Lancieri – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer II – 04/28/14 – 
From Juvenile Standards Probation(.50)/Adult Probation Service Fees(.50) 
Funds – To Juvenile Standards Probation(.50)/Juvenile Intensive Probation 
Supervision(.50) Funds – Change in funding 
REQUEST TO POST: 
12.  Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser – Vacated by Jeremy Schnepf 
13.  Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Allison 
Torres 
 
MAY 27, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 

Page 9 of 12 
 



1.  Shawn Osborn – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 05/16/14 – General 
Fund – DOH 11/05/12 
2.  Eloise Price – Court Information Systems – Court Information Systems 
Director – 05/30/14 – General Fund – DOH 01/01/89 
3.  C. Brent Bailey – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment 
Operator – 05/29/14 – Public Works Fund – DOH 01/27/14 
4.  Tol Johnson – Public Works – Solid Waste Services Worker – 05/20/14 – 
Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 06/10/13 
5.  Sean Bowyer – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 05/18/14 – General 
Fund – DOH 04/29/13 
6.  Terry Hudgens – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Sgt. (.48) – 04/27/14 – 
General Fund – DOH 09/09/02 
NEW HIRES: 
7.  John McCrory – Public Works – Flood Control Technician – 06/02/14 – 
General Fund – Replacing Sine Scott 
8.  Amanda Olvera – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Care Worker – 
06/02/14 – Rabies Control Fund – Replacing Christopher Stuhmer 
9.  Pamela Morgan-Moore – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk – 
06/02/14 – General Fund – Replacing Jonathan Bearup 
10.  Dwight Payne – Sheriff’s Office – IT Administration and Support Technician 
Senior – 06/09/14 – General Fund – Replacing Patrick McGraw 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
11.  Dezirae Williams – Health and Emergency Services – Temporary Public 
Health Emergency Preparedness Assistant – 06/02/14 – Bio Terrorism 
Program Fund  
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
12.  Nicholas Montague – Community Services – Fiscal Services Manager – 
05/18/14 – Various Funds 
13.  Robert Swinford – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – 
06/02/14 – Cost of Prosecution Reimbursement Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
14.  Sally Denny – From Sheriff’s Office – To Clerk of Superior Court – From 
911 Dispatcher – To Courtroom Clerk – 05/27/14 – General Fund – Replacing 
Teresa Griego 
15.  Cassie Durnan – From Clerk of Superior Court – To Superior Court – From 
Courtroom Clerk – To Judicial Assistant – 05/27/14 – General Fund – 
Replacing Kay St. Laurent 
16.  Brian Rogers – Public Works – From Custodian (.85) – To Building 
Maintenance Technician – 06/02/14 – From Facilities Management Fund – To 
General Fund – Replacing Daniel Gregson 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
17.  Susan O’Connor – School Superintendent’s Office – Administrative 
Assistant – 05/27/14 – General Fund – Change in hours 
18.  Austin Payne – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 06/09/14 – 
General Fund – Extending temporary employment through 08/01/14 

Page 10 of 12 
 



19.  Rachel Wright – Clerk of the Superior Court – Court Clerk (.40) – 
05/19/14 – General Fund – Change in temporary assignment 
REQUEST TO POST: 
20.  Public Works – Solid Waste Services Worker – Vacated by Tol Johnson 
21.  Public Works – Custodian (.85) – Vacated by Brian Rogers 
 
G.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of May 5, 2014, to May 9, 
2014; and May 12, 2014, to May 16, 2014.  
 
H.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the week of June 3, 
2014.  
 
June 3, 2014 
 
$247,917.53 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 262099 
through 262231.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 5-A through 5-H. 
 
Item 6 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue 
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may 
not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 7 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-31.02(K), 
members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may 
present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken on 
issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
  

Page 11 of 12 
 



There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 2:43 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 12 of 12 
 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  May 27, 2014 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian; Bryan B. 
Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal; Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; 
and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.   
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  

  
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Steve Stratton led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Bill Norton of the First Presbyterian Church 
in Globe delivered the invocation.   

  
 Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  

 
A.  Information/Discussion:  Update of legislative activity in Washington, 
D.C. by Patricia Power of Bose Public Affairs Group.  
 
Patricia Power (via telephone) provided a summary of the following recent 
legislative activities relevant to Gila County.   
 
• Prepared for and joined Vice-Chairman Martin during her visit to 

Washington for the National Association of Counties’ (NACo) Rural Action 
Caucus fly-in. 

• Meetings Attended:  Department of Transportation (DOT) Acting Deputy 
Secretary Victor Mendez and his staff: Senator John McCain and his staff; 
Representative Paul Gosar and his staff; staff for Senator Jeff Flake and 
Representative Ann Kirkpatrick; DOT legislative staff; and Department of 
Agriculture Rural Development and other staff. 

Page 1 of 16 
 



• Continued to research new approaches to funding the County’s 
transportation projects, including legislative options. 

• Continued to monitor County priorities including forest health and wildfire 
threats and 4FRI (Four Forest Restoration Initiative), transportation needs, 
including ongoing forest road projects and the Tonto Creek Bridge, Payment 
In-Lieu of Taxes, Secure Rural Schools, Endangered Species Act decision 
impact, water projects in Payson, and broader issues such as immigration.  

 
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she has a meeting scheduled with 
Representative Paul Gosar on Wednesday June 4th in Payson for a “quasi-field 
hearing” regarding forest health.  A letter was sent to Senators Jeff Flake and 
John McCain regarding the eastern counties “bridge the gap” in an effort to get 
wood product industry coming from 4FRI moved through northeast Arizona.   
 
Chairman Pastor stated that at the Western Regional Conference he recently 
attended there was “pot stirring” with regard to federal regulations relating to 
environmental protection, the United States Forest Service, and the 
Endangered Species Act, as well as concerns regarding the topic of waterways 
of America.  He stated that when information regarding these issues is received 
from NACo he will forward that information to Ms. Power.    
 
B.  Presentation of the 2014 Gila County Spelling Bee Winner, Kendra 
Martinez of High Desert Middle School.   
 
Dr. Linda O'Dell, School Superintendent via video conference in Payson, 
congratulated this year’s Gila County Spelling Bee winner, eighth grader 
Kendra Martinez, who was present in Globe to accept the award.  Dr. O’Dell 
also acknowledged and thanked the Board of Supervisors and the local 
community for its continued support of school activities.   
 
C.  Presentation of a Certificate of Appreciation by Town of Miami 
Manager Jerry Barnes in recognition of the Board of Supervisors' support 
of the Town of Miami's Cobre Valley Community Transit Program.  
 
Jerry Barnes, Town of Miami Manager, stated that the Town of Miami was 
recently presented with the 2014 Excellence Award from the Arizona 
Department of Transportation and the Arizona Transit Association for its small 
rural transit system known as the Cobre Valley Community Transit Program.  
He then read aloud the Certificate of Appreciation and presented it to the Board 
and displayed the trophy that was received for Outstanding Urban and Rural 
Transport System. 
 
D.  Presentation of the University of Arizona's Gila County Cooperative 
Extension Office Annual Report and 2014-2015 fiscal year budget request 
to be considered for approval during Gila County's regular budget 

Page 2 of 16 
 



process.  
 
Jim Sprinkle, Ph.D., University of Arizona Area Extension Agent, Animal 
Science and Gila County Cooperative Extension Director, expressed his 
appreciation to the Board and other local citizens for their efforts in helping the 
Cooperative Extension program successfully secure increased fiscal year 2014-
2015 funds from the State’s budget.  Since 2008, the Cooperative Extension 
funding has been reduced by 40% and the State has now increased the budget 
by 33%.  Dr. Sprinkle requested $60,000 of funding, which is the same level of 
funding provided by the County in past years.   
 
A slide presentation was then provided which showcased some highlights of the 
past year.  A focus group was formed and the group held meetings in order to 
receive input from the stakeholders of the Cooperative Extension program, 
which resulted in the following goals: 
Goal 1:  Educate and equip people and communities to manage and utilize 
natural resources to improve economic sustainability. 
Goal 2:  Promote safe, profitable, and sustainable plant and animal systems. 
Goal 3:  Strengthen economic vitality of communities by developing leadership, 
workplace skills and life skills of youth and adults to assist them to be 
contributing community members.  
Goal 4:  Enhance the growth and development of Arizona children and youth so 
that young people will contribute positively to the community.   
Goal 5:  Improve the physical, mental, emotional, and financial health of 
individuals and families.   
 
Dr. Sprinkle stated that Cooperative Extension has submitted a request for 
consideration to the Cooperative Extension Administration to add an area 
agent who would deal with forest health and forest products.  This person 
would work out of the Globe Cooperative Extension Office and serve Gila, 
Navajo, and Yavapai Counties.  He added that he would send the draft job 
description that was submitted to the Cooperative Extension Administration to 
the Board of Supervisors in order to keep the Board apprised of the progression 
of this effort.   
 
He added that Cooperative Extension is 100 years old as of May 8, 2014, and 
the Board of Supervisors will soon receive an invitation to the celebration. 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin gave kudos to Dr. Sprinkle and the Cooperative 
Extension program.  Supervisor Marcanti stated that last year he met with 
Brent Billingsley, Globe City Manager, who composed the letter of support that 
was sent to the Governor and Arizona legislators for increased funding by the 
State, and he is pleased that the results of that effort will work out well for the 
local community.  Chairman Pastor thanked Dr. Sprinkle for the presentation 
and stated that he appreciates the work of Cooperative Extension.   
 

Page 3 of 16 
 



Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convene as the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District Board of 
Directors.) Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the election results 
of the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District Special Election held 
on May 20, 2014, in Gila County, Arizona, and declare the results official. 
(Motion to adjourn as the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District 
Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors.)  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convened as the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District Board of 
Directors. 
 
Eric Mariscal, Elections Department Director, summarized the election results 
of the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District (PSWID) Special Election as 
follows:  There were 2,316 registered voters; 1,054 ballots were tabulated; the 
voter turnout was 45.51%; there were 9 provisional ballots cast from residents; 
4 provisional ballots cast from non-residents; there were 0 rejected provisional 
ballots cast; and all 13 votes were verified for tabulation.    
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if 45.51% was a good voter turnout, to which Mr. 
Mariscal replied that it was, in fact, a good turnout of voters and a higher 
percentage than was expected.  He anticipated approximately a 30% turnout 
for this type of election held at this time of year.  Supervisor Marcanti thanked 
Mr. Mariscal, County Manager Don McDaniel, and the Gila County Attorney’s 
Office for working together to make this Special Election transpire smoothly 
and beneficially to all involved parties.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously canvassed the 
election results of the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District Special 
Election held on May 20, 2014, in Gila County, Arizona, and declared the 
results official.  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board adjourned as the Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District Board of 
Directors and reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the election results of the 
Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District Special Election held on May 
20, 2014, in Gila County, Arizona and declare the results official.   
 
Mr. Mariscal provided spiral-bound copies of the booklet titled “Canvass of 
Election Results Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District Special Election 
May 20, 2014” to the Board for review which contained the results of the 

Page 4 of 16 
 



election as stated above.  Mr. Mariscal thanked the Gila County Elections 
Department staff, Recorder’s Office staff, and David Rogers, System and 
Network Communication Analyst for the Information Technology Department, 
for their help with this election. 
 
Richard James of Strawberry, Arizona thanked the Board for directing the 
process to elect a new Board of Directors (BOD) for the Pine-Strawberry Water 
Improvement District (PSWID).  He asked that all documents that were turned 
over to the Board of Supervisors during the time it assumed authority as the 
PSWID BOD and any newly created documents be provided to the newly elected 
PSWID BOD.  He advised that the PSWID BOD is interested in the findings of 
the audit of the PSWID that was conducted by the State Auditor General.  He 
further stated that the information was to be provided in the month of May to 
the newly formed board.  Chairman Pastor deferred to Mr. McDaniel who 
replied that the State Auditor General is continuing to look at all of the 
information that has been presented by the citizens of the PSWID and by Gila 
County.  He added that the audit is not complete; however, those individuals 
who are conducting the audit are apprising Gila County staff as to the progress 
being made on the audit.  He assured Mr. James that once the audit is 
complete, the information will be provided to the County as well as to the 
PSWID BOD.  Mr. James then inquired as to the date and time the newly 
elected board would be sworn in.  Mr. McDaniel replied that any PSWID staff 
member may swear in the new members as was the past practice of the PSWID; 
however, he added that arrangements could be made for Dorothy Little, Payson 
Regional Justice of the Peace, to swear in newly elected board members.  He 
added that the other point of order for resolution by the newly elected board is 
to determine which board members will initially serve a two-year term instead 
of a four-year term in order to initiate the cycle of having an election occur 
every two years for four-year terms of office.    
 
Chairman Pastor stated that Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, will be able to 
direct the new board to the applicable statutes should the PSWID BOD need 
assistance.  He added that Open Meeting Law information will also be provided 
to the new Board members.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin reiterated Mr. McDaniel’s comments regarding the 
swearing-in process.   
 
Bryan Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal, advised that the important event 
in this transition process is for each of the newly elected board members to 
sign an oath-of-office form and forward the originals to Mr. Mariscal.  He stated 
that now that the election results have been officially canvassed, the members 
are in office and any swearing-in of newly elected members would only be 
ceremonial.   
 

Page 5 of 16 
 



Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if the oath-of-office forms have been sent to the 
PSWID.  Mr. Mariscal replied that he has been in contact with Rebecca Sigeti, 
District Office Staff, who has the oath-of-office forms available and he advised 
that she can swear-in the newly elected board members.   
 
Pam Mason of Pine, Arizona thanked the Board of Supervisors for allowing an 
election to take place in May.  She stated that she is confident that the newly 
elected board will exercise due diligence, transparency, and fiscal 
responsibility.   
 
The Board of Supervisors thanked staff and the newly elected PSWID Board of 
Directors for a smooth transition and wished them success. 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the Young Elementary District and the Gila County 
Sheriff's Office for a School Resource Officer for a performance period of 
November 4, 2013, through May 24, 2014.  
 
Michael L. Johnson, Undersheriff, stated that this Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA) was held up in the review process and that was the reason for 
the delay in presenting the item to the Board of Supervisors.  He stated that 
Linda Cheney, Superintendent of the Young Elementary School District, 
contacted him regarding the availability of the grant funding for the position as 
stated above.  Gary Eggert, Deputy Sheriff, was identified to fill this position.  
He received the necessary training to fulfill the grant requirements and filled 
this position of School Resource Office for the Young Elementary School 
District for the period as stated above.  Mr. Johnson added that the Young 
Elementary School District is billed on a monthly basis to reimburse the 
County for the officer’s salary as stated in the IGA.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board approved an 
Intergovernmental Agreement between the Young Elementary District and the 
Gila County Sheriff's Office for a School Resource Officer for a performance 
period of November 4, 2013, through May 24, 2014. 
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the distribution of 
$1,469,776.59 of Gila County's Secure Rural Schools and Communities 
Funds (SRSC - 'Forest Fees') for FY2013-14 as follows: $50,000.00 to 
Roads and $1,419,776.59 to Gila County School Districts.   
 
Linda O'Dell, School Superintendent, stated that the above referenced funding 
is federal FY2013 funding that is being spent in the FY2013-2014 school year.  
The County Manager and the School Superintendent are in agreement as to the 
distribution of funds as outlined above which is based on a formula that 
provides a base amount for all school districts and additional amounts based 
on forest acreage and student enrollment of each district.  Each Board member 
commented in support of this distribution of funds.  Upon motion by 

Page 6 of 16 
 



Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved the distribution of $1,469,776.59 of Gila County's 
Secure Rural Schools and Communities Funds (SRSC - 'Forest Fees') for 
FY2013-14 as follows: $50,000.00 to Roads and $1,419,776.59 to Gila County 
School Districts. 
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the submission of a grant 
application by the Gila County Public Works Department for a "Secure 
Rural Schools and Community Self-Determination Act of 2000", as 
reauthorized by HR 527 Helium Stewardship Act, Title II - Special 
Project Grant for fiscal year 2014 funding for a Forest Road 512 Surfacing 
Project.  
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, explained that this item 
is to for the Board of Supervisors to authorize the submission of a grant 
application for the other portion of the Secure Rural Schools funding, Title II.  
She stated that the Board of Supervisors in the past has determined that 80% 
of the total funds received for Secure Rural Schools are to be used for schools, 
Title I, and 20% of the funds are to be used for special projects such as forest 
service roads improvements, Title II.  The grant application for Secure Rural 
Schools must be submitted to the United States Department of Agriculture, 
Forest Service, by May 31, 2014.  The Public Works Division has completed as 
much of Forest Service Road 512 as there was funding, and the intent is to 
now complete the remaining section of Forest Service Road 512 that is not 
surfaced as grant funds allow.  Ms. Griffin added that the County has received 
letters of support for this project from the Tonto National Forest Supervisor and 
the Gila County Sheriff’s Office.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board approved the submission of a 
grant application by the Gila County Public Works Department for a "Secure 
Rural Schools and Community Self-Determination Act of 2000", as 
reauthorized by HR 527 Helium Stewardship Act, Title II - Special Project Grant 
for fiscal year 2014 funding for a Forest Road 512 Surfacing Project. 
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to endorse and support the Mexican 
Wolf 10(j) Revision Cooperating Agencies Alternative, and submit a letter 
to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) requesting formal National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Consistency Review for the Mexican 
Wolf  10(j) Revision Cooperating Agencies Alternative.  
 
Ms. Griffin stated that this is a 5th alternative to the Draft Environmental 
Impact Statement that the County Cooperating Agency, consisting of Arizona 
and New Mexico counties, has participated in preparing.  The request today is 
to authorize submission of a letter to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
(USFWS) requesting an official review and to consider the 5th alternative to the 
10j Rule regarding the Mexican wolf nonessential experimental population.  
Vice-Chairman Martin clarified the 5th alternative stating that this alternative 

Page 7 of 16 
 



accomplishes the following:  no wolves are to be released in Gila County; the 
wolf population is to be stabilized at 300 versus the 1,500 estimated by 
USFWS; and, it broadens the area that the wolves may travel to den outside of 
the release area, but also allows for the management of the wolves with the 
authorization to deal with them as necessary by not designating the wolves as 
an endangered species.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously endorsed and supported the 
Mexican Wolf 10(j) Revision Cooperating Agencies Alternative, and submitted a 
letter to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) requesting formal National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Consistency Review for the Mexican Wolf 10(j) 
Revision Cooperating Agencies Alternative. 
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Services Contract No. 042913 between Gila County and 
Ulibarri-Mason Global HR, LP to allow for the addition of three new tasks 
to the Classification and Compensation Study scope of work, for an 
additional cost of $6,000 plus reimbursable travel expenses, for a new 
total contract amount of $95,000 plus reimbursable travel expenses; and 
to extend the contract term from May 14, 2014, to November 13, 2014.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that this agenda item is not for the 
purpose of delaying the implementation of the Classification and Compensation 
Study, but rather to extend the services of Ulibarri-Mason Global HR, LP, 
beyond the results of the Study, specifically, for the purpose of assisting the 
Human Resources Department with understanding the methodology of the 
training and manuals with regard to integrating them with County policies that 
will be implemented upon Board approval.  Additionally, Ulibarri-Mason staff 
will provide guidance to the Human Resources Department relating to the new 
job titles, grades, and salaries moving forward with new positions.  Mr. 
McDaniel stated that the transformation will take effect, if approved by the 
Board, at the June 3, 2014, Board of Supervisors’ meeting, with any salary 
changes to be effective the June 30, 2014, pay period, and to appear on the 
July 18, 2014, paycheck.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Services Contract No. 042913 between Gila County and Ulibarri-
Mason Global HR, LP to allow for the addition of three new tasks to the 
Classification and Compensation Study scope of work, for an additional cost of 
$6,000 plus reimbursable travel expenses, for a new total contract amount of 
$95,000 plus reimbursable travel expenses; and to extend the contract term 
from May 14, 2014, to November 13, 2014.   
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve lump-sum performance 
payments ranging from 3.5% to 1.5% for qualified employees at a cost of 
approximately $654,000 to the County.   
 

Page 8 of 16 
 



Linda Eastlick, Human Resources/Risk Management Director, stated that last 
year the lump-sum performance based payments given to employees were 
introduced as appreciation for the hard work and dedication demonstrated by 
the employees of the County.  The County has budgeted for these payments 
again this year and is ready to proceed with the payments to employees.  The 
payment will be made to all active, full-time and part-time employees who were 
hired on or before January 2, 2014, who are still employed by the County the 
week ending June 30, 2014, the correct date is week ending June 13, 2014, 
and for whom the Human Resources Department has received a 2014 
performance appraisal.  The average payment to employees is approximately 
2.5% and will be paid in the June 20, 2014, paycheck.   Chairman Pastor 
added for clarification that any future lump-sum payments will be reviewed by 
the Board and this is subject to change as a result of the Classification and 
Compensation Study implementation.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved lump-
sum performance payments ranging from 3.5% to 1.5% for qualified employees 
at a cost of approximately $654,000 to the County.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin briefly revisited agenda item 3G.  She wanted the 3 
tasks which are to be performed by Ulibarri-Mason to be included in the 
record, as follows:   
1) Implementation of the new salary schedule 
2) Revisions of and to finalize the new classification policies 
3) Provide manuals and training materials to ensure a smooth transition 
moving forward. 
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that it was a favorable action for Vice-Chairman Martin to 
state these items for the record and include them in the permanent record for 
the public.   
 
Chairman Pastor addressed agenda item 4 at this time and he asked for a 
motion from the Board on this item. 
 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (DPS Contract No. 2014-
026) between the Arizona Department of Public Safety, Arizona Counter 
Terrorism Information Center (ACTIC) and the Gila County Sheriff's Office 
whereby the Sheriff's Office will assign one deputy as the certified 
Terrorism Liaison Officer to become effective upon the final signatures by 
both parties and shall remain in effect until such time that either party 
submits a 30-day written notice to terminate.  
 

Page 9 of 16 
 



B.  Approval of Contract No. 07012014-15 between the Arizona 
Community Action Association (ACAA) and the Gila County Community 
Services Division, Community Action Program (CAP), whereby ACAA will 
administer funding in the amount of $93,047.12, which will be used to 
provide weatherization services, utility repair and replacement, utility 
deposits and bill assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for 
the period of July 1, 2014, through June 1, 2015.  
 
C.  Approval of the Chairman’s signature on the State of Arizona Surplus 
Property Authorization and Update for Eligibility Recertification & 
Records Update form and the Nondiscrimination Assurance form for Gila 
County authorized signers to purchase State surplus property for Gila 
County.  
 
D.  Approval of an Application for Fireworks Display submitted by 
Fireworks Productions of Arizona sponsored by Freeport-McMoRan Copper 
& Gold, Inc.-Miami Operations to provide a fireworks display on July 4, 
2014, at the Miami Operations mine site of Freeport-McMoRan Copper & 
Gold, Inc.  
 
E.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 040214-2 for 
Major Rehabilitation Project No. HH#3335 between Gila County and 
Rodriguez Constructions, Inc. to increase the original contract amount by 
$4,500 for a total contract amount of $51,283.85 in order to allow for the 
correction of the structural issues of the residence.  
 
F.  Acknowledgment of the March 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of the April 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office  
 
H.  Acknowledgment of the April 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
I.  Acknowledgment of the April 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 
J.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of April 21, 2014, to April 
25, 2014; and April 28, 2014, to May 2, 2014.  
 
K.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of May 
13, 2014, May 20, 2014, and May 27, 2014.  
 
 

Page 10 of 16 
 



May 13, 2014 
 
$3,163,051.44 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 261605 
through 261803.  
 
May 20, 2014 
 
$653,656.84 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 261804 
through 261928.  
 
May 27, 2014 
 
$1,491,454.16 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 261929 
through 262098.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board approved Consent Agenda action items 4A through 4K as presented. 
 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue 
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may 
not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Chairman Pastor returned to agenda item 3I and called on County Manager 
Don McDaniel to present this item. 
 
I.  Information/Discussion to review and provide comments regarding the 
2014 Gila County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax as follows: (1) a 
time line of events; (2) a draft needs and levy Resolution with the 
understanding that the Needs and Levy Resolution will be presented at 
the June 24, 2014 Regular meeting for adoption; (3) a draft Resolution to 
call for an election in November with the understanding that the call for 
an election Resolution will be presented at the July 1, 2014 Regular 
meeting for adoption; (4) the method of distribution of the proceeds to 
the cities and towns; and (5) a draft suggested resolution of support from 
the cities and towns.  
 

Page 11 of 16 
 



Don McDaniel, County Manager, advised that initially this item was scheduled 
to be discussed during the Board’s work session, but it has since been moved 
to this meeting.  He reviewed the timeline of events and reminded the Board 
that many of these dates are set in order to meet statutory requirements. 
 
 

Transportation Excise Tax Time Line of Events For a Tuesday 11/04/14 Election 
   
  Days Before Election 
  And 
Activities to be Completed  Completion Dates 
BOS Decides to Pursue Trans Tax Continuation  000 - 10/29/13 
BOS Appoints Citizens Committee  000 - 01/07/14 
Citizens Committee Recommendation Due  000 - 03/04/14 
BOS Accepts Rec & Disbands Cit Com  000 - 03/04/14 
Prepare History, Fact Sheet, Publicity Information   
Consultant Public Presentations  000 - 05/05/14 
AQ Deadline for 5/27/14 Work Session Agenda  000 - 05/12/14 
BOS Work Session Discuss Status & Schedule  161 - 05/27/14 
AQ Deadline for 6/24/14 BOS Regular Agenda  000 - 06/09/14 
AQ Deadline for 7/1/14 BOS Regular Agenda  000 - 06/16/14 
BOS Reg Mtg to Adopt Needs and Levy Resolution  133 - 06/24/14 
Notice to AZ Department of Revenue  133 - 06/24/14 
BOS Reg Mtg to Call for Election in November  126 - 07/01/14 
Advertise for Public Arguments  126 - 07/01/14 
Campaign Committee (CC) May Legally Form  000 - 07/02/14 
CC Registers as a Political Action Committee  000 - 07/02/14 
CC Contracts with Legal Counsel & Fin Consultant  000 - 07/02/14 
LAST DAY to Call the Election  120 - 07/07/14 
Submit Ballot Language to Department of Revenue  110 - 07/17/14 
Submit Pamphlet Language to Printer  90 - 08/06/14 
Submit Ballot Language to Printer  90 - 08/06/14 
Arguments Due from the Public  90 - 08/06/14 
US Department of Justice Submission  60 - 09/05/14 
Pamphlets Mailed (must be delivered before early ballots)  40 - 09/25/14 
Last Day to Register to Vote  29 - 10/06/14 
Early Ballots Mailed Out  26 - 10/09/14 

 
Mr. McDaniel stated that the needs and levy resolution to be adopted not only 
states the purpose of the tax, but it also states the type of businesses that 
would pay the tax.  Additionally, the resolution determines which entity will 
distribute the revenue.  He then explained the differences in having the County 
distribute the funds or having the Department of Revenue distribute the funds 
generated by the ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax.  It was recommended to 

Page 12 of 16 
 



the Board that the Department of Revenue take the responsibility to distribute 
the funds as well as take the responsibility for any audit of the expenditures of 
funds.  Chairman Pastor inquired if the entity that distributes the funds was 
the only difference in the two resolutions for consideration.  Mr. McDaniel 
replied in the affirmative and stated that the difference is located on Page 4, 
Section 9 of the resolution; one stating that the County would distribute the 
funds; and the other one stating that the Department of Revenue would 
distribute the funds.  He added that this resolution allows for future changes in 
population and incorporation changes in cities and towns with regard to the ½ 
Cent Transportation Excise Tax.  
 
The next resolution for consideration is to establish the date of November 4, 
2014, for the General Election at which time the Gila County ½ Cent 
Transportation Excise Tax would be on the ballot.  He added that on July 1, 
2014, a call for election would take place, and July 7, 2014, is the deadline for 
the call for election.  Proceeding from those important dates, Mr. McDaniel 
explained that several steps follow those dates, such as advertising for public 
arguments, and the development of the brochure by County staff.  He stated 
that as soon as possible after the June 24th meeting, at which time the needs 
and levy resolution would be adopted, he is hopeful that the Citizens 
Committee will step forward and set about the task of putting the campaign in 
place for the ultimate success of this election.  He cautioned that at that time, 
anyone working for the County, cities and towns is prohibited from working on 
the campaign for this election.  
 
Chairman Pastor inquired as to the prudence of working to gain support from 
Gila County citizens at this time in order to form a committee, which would 
essentially be a political action committee.  Mr. McDaniel stated that the 
Citizens Committee that was formed by the Board of Supervisors for the 
purpose of determining the need for the continuation of the ½ Cent 
Transportation Excise Tax was disbanded by the Board after their 
recommendation to continue the tax was presented to the Board.  He added 
that it was hoped that the individuals who served on that Committee would 
continue with this effort by forming and serving on a political action committee.  
Mr. McDaniel stated that all of the information that has been provided to the 
Board of Supervisors has also been provided to the former members of the 
Citizens Committee.  Mr. McDaniel cautioned that the Board of Supervisors 
has no authority over a political action committee.    
 
Chairman Pastor asked for further clarification from Bryan Chambers, Deputy 
Attorney Principal, who then stated that the challenge would be not to use any 
County time, resources or services to create the committee.  What Board 
members do individually is the same as what is permitted in campaigning for 
an election and has the same types of limitations.   
 

Page 13 of 16 
 



Supervisor Marcanti asked for clarification as to the responsibility to conduct 
audits of the entities receiving the funds to ensure the proper use of funds.  
Mr. McDaniel stated that the Department of Revenue distributes the funds and 
has the responsibility to conduct audits.  The Department of Revenue conducts 
audits every five years; hence, Mr. McDaniel emphasized the importance of the 
resolution to place the responsibility on the Department of Revenue to oversee 
the use of the tax within their jurisdiction.  There was a brief discussion 
regarding monitoring the expenditures of the cities and towns, but it was 
agreed that it would be advisable for the Department of Revenue to monitor the 
revenue collected by the ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax.   
 
Mr. McDaniel then reviewed the information shown below.   

 
2014 GILA COUNTY ½ CENT TRANSPORTATION EXCISE TAX 

DISTRIBUTION FORMULA FOR CITY AND TOWNS IN GILA COUNTY 

The table below shows data equitably distributing the Gila County 
Transportation Excise Tax for the years 2015-2034 should the County 
decide to request that the voters extend the current tax, and should the 
voters decide to extend the current tax.  The data is based on the following: 
 

1. The current sales tax rate of 0.5% generated $3,003,850 in fiscal year 
2013. 

 
2. The population for each of the incorporated entities within Gila 

County was obtained from the 2014 Arizona Local Government 
Directory prepared by the League of Arizona Cities and Towns.  
Those populations are as follows: Globe – 7,532; Hayden – 798; 
Miami – 1,837; Payson – 15,301; Star Valley – 2,310; and 
Winkelman – 353.  (Based on Gila County numbers the population 
for Hayden is 798 rather than the 662 shown in the League book.) 

 
3. The population for the unincorporated areas of Gila County (the 

area where the County is responsible for the roads) was also taken 
from the League Directory.  The overall County population is 
53,597.  Subtracting the summation of the incorporated entities 
within Gila County (28,131) from the total County population 
leaves the population in the unincorporated areas of Gila County 
at 25,466. 

 
This table below is based on dividing the funds received from the 
transportation excise tax on population, but includes a minimum amount to 
be given to each incorporated entity of $50,000. This would give Hayden and 
Winkelman each $50,000 with the remainder being divided among the other 
five entities based on population.  This results in the following potential 

Page 14 of 16 
 



allocations: 
 
 
 

Entity Population Percentage of Distribution Allocation Based on 
FY13 Collection 

Gila County 
(Unincorporated) Area) 25,466 46.94% $1,410,011.14 

Globe 7,532 13.88% $417,034.63 
Hayden 798 1.66% $50,000.00 
Miami 1,837 3.39% $101,711.71 
Payson 15,301 28.20% $847,191.57 

Star Valley 2,310 4.26% $127,900.96 
Winkelman 353 1.66% $50,000.00 

Total 53,597 100.00% $3,003,850.00 
 
Mr. McDaniel then stated that the last attachment for review is a draft 
resolution which would be finalized and distributed to the cities and town in 
order for a resolution to be adopted by each city and town supporting the ½ 
Cent Transportation Excise Tax. 
 
Chairman Pastor provided a brief history of this item for the media stating that 
the County hasn’t shared the ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax revenue with 
any cities or towns during the 20 years this tax has been in place, so this 
would be the first step to invite those entities to share in the tax revenues.  
Vice-Chairman Martin added that twenty years ago, it is her understanding 
that the cities and towns were invited to participate in these tax revenues; 
however, they declined.  She added that the tax has been used for improvement 
to unincorporated roads and she feels the County has used the revenue from 
this tax wisely and for the good of all of Gila County.   
 
Although no action was taken, Chairman Pastor advised that the Board is in 
agreement and supportive of moving forward with this process.  Mr. McDaniel 
added that the revenue received from the ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax 
has been critical to the condition of the road in Gila County and that the 
County has used the revenue judiciously in the right places at the right time.  
He added that any information regarding the specific projects that have been 
completed using this tax and specific projects planned for the future will be 
made readily available to the public to promote the continuation of the ½ Cent 
Transportation Excise Tax in Gila County.   
 
Item 6 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 

Page 15 of 16 
 



Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:04 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16 of 16 
 



   

ARF-2568     Consent Agenda Item      4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Reporting
Period:

Human Resources reports for the weeks of 06/03/14, 06/10/14,
06/17/14, and 06/24/14.

Submitted For: Linda
Eastlick

Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources
Assistant, Human Resources Department

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of June 3, 2014, June 10, 2014, June 17,
2014, and June 24, 2014.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of June 3, 2014, June
10, 2014, June 17, 2014, and June 24, 2014.

Attachments
June Human Resources Summary Report
06/03/14 Human Resources Report
06/10/14 Human Resources Report
06/17/14 Human Resources Report
06/24/14 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐14 Feb‐14 Mar‐14 Apr‐14 May‐14 Jun‐14 Jul‐14 Aug‐14 Sep‐14 Oct‐14 Nov‐14 Dec‐14

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 65 10 8 12 16 9 10

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 40 4 5 6 13 8 4

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 12 6 0 2 0 2 2

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 31 5 6 3 3 12 2

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 53 14 10 5 9 10 5

OTHER ACTIONS 25 5 1 2 3 8 6

REQUEST TO POST 45 9 4 4 13 7 8

  Total Transactions 271 53 34 34 57 56 37 0 0 0 0 0 0



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 3, 2014 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Joseph Dorame – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 05/28/14 – General Fund – DOH 10/28/13 
2. Christine Ortiz – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 05/30/14 – Public Works Fund – 

DOH 11/03/08 
3. LeRoy Bagwell – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer II – 05/29/14 – Adult Probation Services Fees 

Fund – DOH 10/14/08 
4. Jennifer Meyer – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 05/20/14 – State Aid Enhancement Fund – 

DOH 04/28/14 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Kimberly Bittner – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 06/24/14 – General Fund 
6. Andressa Kumparak – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 06/24/14 – General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

7. April Fogle – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 05/20/14 – From General Fund – To State 
Enhancement Fund – Replacing Jennifer Meyer 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

8. David Jones – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer Supervisor – 06/03/14 – State Aid Enhancement 
(.50)/Adult Intensive Probation Supervision(.50) Funds – Extending probationary period for 6 months 

9. Christian Leos – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary (underfill) – 06/09/14 – Cost of 
Prosecution Reimbursement Fund – Temporary increase to 29 hours week 

 
 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 10, 2014 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Mary Stemm – Library District – Temporary Library Assistant Senior – 05/16/14 – Library Assistance 
Fund – DOH 04/28/14 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Marina Cohn – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 06/16/14 – General Fund – Replacing Denise Doney 
 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

3. Larry Speer – Assessor’s Office – Temporary Appraiser – 06/02/14 – General Fund – Temporary 
assignment through 08/01/14 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

4. Delia Ronquillo – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 06/02/14 – From Workforce 
Investment Act Fund  – Workforce Investment Act Programs Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

5. Rebecca Taylor – Public Works – From Custodian (.48) – To Custodian (.85) – 06/16/14 – Facilities 
Management Fund – Replacing Brian Rogers 

 
 
 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 17, 2014 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Curtis Johnson – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 06/06/14 – General Fund – DOH 
03/17/14 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Daniel Sterling – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 06/23/14 – Fleet Management Fund – 
Replacing Derek Bartling 

3. Adrian Marks – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 06/23/14 – Various Funds – 
Replacing Allison Torres 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

4. Rebecca Taylor – Public Works – Custodian(.85) – 07/27/14 – Facilities Management Fund  
 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

5. Vanessa Amairia – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 06/24/14 – General Fund – Extending 
probationary period for 6 months 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

6. Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – Vacated by Curtis Johnson, Matthew Cruz and Tannyn 
Garcia 

7. Community Development – Permit Technician – Vacated by Beverly Valenzuela  
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JUNE 24, 2014 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Larry Speer – Assessor’s Office – Temporary Property Appraiser 1 – 06/18/14 – General Fund - DOH 
06/02/14  

2. Roland Boyer – Public Works – Materials Tester and Safety Representative – 06/30/14 – Public Works 
Fund – DOH 04/16/07 

3. Peter Licavoli – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff SRO – 06/06/14 – General Fund – DOH 08/21/06 
4. Pamela Morgan-Moore – Clerk of the Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk – 06/13/14 – General Fund – 

DOH 06/02/14 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

5. Kirby King – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 2 – 06/30/14 – General Fund – Replacing Jeremy 
Schnepf  

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

6. Nyomi Sandle – Community Development – Temporary Clerk – General Fund 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Mark Warden – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Lead – 07/27/14 – Facilities 
Management Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

8. Christopher Heath – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 07/07/14 – Fleet Management Fund – 
Extending probationary period for 6 months 

9. Stephanie Dean – Library District – Temporary Library Community Liaison – 07/01/14 – Library 
District Grants Fund – Extending employment through 6/30/15 

10. Gloria Thompson – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Program Coordinator – 07/01/14 – 
Library District Grants Fund – Extending employment through 6/30/15 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

11. Library District – Globe/Miami Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – Vacated by Delores 
Guerrero 

12. Library District – Hayden/Winkelman Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – Vacated by 
Amanda Aguirre 

13. Library District – Payson/Star Valley/Pine/Strawberry/Tonto Basin/Roosevelt Temporary Early Literacy 
Community Liaison – Vacated by Robin Holt and Maxine Piper 

14. Library District – Bylas Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – New grant position 
15. Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk – Vacated by Pamela Morgan-Moore 
16. Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – Vacated by Christine Ortiz 

 
 



   

ARF-2614     Consent Agenda Item      4. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for
Week Ending 6-13-14

Submitted For: Jeffrey
Hessenius,
Finance
Director

Submitted By:
Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Week Ending
6-13-14.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by the
County Manager for the weeks of June 9, 2014, to June 13, 2014.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Week Ending
6-13-14
Service Agreement No. 053014-1 with Mountain Retreat Builders
Service Agreement No. 053014 with Mountain Retreat Builders
Service Agreement 060314-3 with Mountain Retreat Builders
Amendment 1 to Contract No 040214-3 with Mountain Retreat Builders
Service Agreement No. 031214 with Wantland & Sons Construction
Service Agreement No 060314-4 with KWIK KOOL Refrigeration
Service Agreement No 052714 with Deborah Leverance
Amendment 1 to Contract No 040214-1-with Rodriguez Constructions
Authorization to Utilize Maricopa County Contract No. 13024-S
Amendment No. 1 to Limited Services Contract with Redwood Toxicology Laboratory
Service Agreement No 060514 with H&H Heating and Cooling
Amendment No. 2 to Contract 042312 with Sun Devil Fire Equipment
Document Conversion Contract Services No. 052114 with Lin-Cum, Inc.
Support & Maintenance Agreement 36813CONSVR with HOV Services
Amendment No 1 to Contract No 041214 with Alhambra MHP & Storage, LLC



Page 1 of 3 

 

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
June 9, 2014 to June 13, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
053014-1 

Mountain Retreat 
Builders 

 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 053014-1 

Weatherization Project No. 
HH#5687 

 
 

 
$8,755.55  

 

 
6-11-14 to 6-30-14 

 
6-11-14 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall perform the following scope of 
work: install a gas pack, seal ductwork, 
weatherstrip doors, install ASHREA fan, 
remove/replace evaporative cooler, repair gas 
piping and ad insulation. 
 

 
053014 

Mountain Retreat 
Builders 

 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 053014 

Weatherization Project No. 
HH#2715 

 
 

 
$9,915.55  

 

 
6-11-14 to 6-30-14 

 
6-11-14 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall perform the following scope of 
work: remove/replace furnace, install ASHREA 
fan, remove evaporative cooler, seal vents, 
insulate the attic and belly, replace refrigerator 
and add sun screens. 
 

 
060314-3 

Mountain Retreat 
Builders 

 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 060314-3 
Pinal/Gila Project No. HH#3922 

 
 

 
$1,500.00  

 

 
6-11-14 to 6-30-14 

 
6-11-14 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor shall perform the following scope of 
work: make existing deck and ramp handicap 
accessible, add new plywood to old deck for 
support and add a rail to outside of ramp for 
safety. 
 

 
040214-3 

Mountain Retreat 
Builders 

 
  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Service 

Agreement No. 040214-3 Major 
Rehab Project No. HH#9736 

 
$500.00  

 

 
6-11-14 to 6-30-14 

 
6-11-14 

 
Expires 

 
Scope of work to include, but not limited to: 
install a bathing fan.  

 
031214 

Wantland & Sons 
Construction 

 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 031214 

Masonry Wall Repair Project 

 
$6,383.97  

 

 
6-11-14 to 6-30-14 

 
6-11-14 

 
Expires 

 
A vehicle accident resulted in damage to Gila 
County masonry wall at Besich Blvd and Russell 
Road in Globe. In order for the insurance 
company to create a claim, they need a quote. A 
Request for Quote was sent out to nine 
contractors. Wantland was the lowest, 
responsible bidder of the bids that were received 
by the County. 
 

 
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 
June 9, 2014 to June 13, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
060314-4 

Kwik Kool Refrigeration 
 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 060314-4 

URRD Work Contract 

 
$7,000.00 

 
6-11-14 to 6-10-13 

 
6-11-13 

 
Option to renew 

for two (2) 
additional one (1) 

year periods 
 

 
The purpose of this contract is to enable Kwik 
Kool to continue URRD services for Housing 
Clients. 
 

 
052714 

Deborah Leverance 
 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 052714 

Gila County Library District 
Early Literacy Advocacy and 

Outreach Grant 

 
$800.00 

 
6-11-14 to 6-10-13 

 
6-11-13 

 
Option to renew 

for two (2) 
additional one (1) 

year periods 
 

Contractor shall continue to work with area 
Kindergarten teachers and their Principals to 
develop and conduct reading readiness data for 
beginning kindergarten students in the Gila 
Regional Service Area. These services are 
required per the renewal for the First Things First 
Community-Based Early Literacy Grant for the 
Gila County Library District. 

 
 

040214-1 
Rodriguez Constructions, 

Inc. 
 
  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Service 

Agreement No. 040214-1 
Weatherization Project No. 

HH#8326 
 
 

 
$3,902.06  

 

 
6-11-14 to 6-30-14 

 
6-11-14 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 has been issued to cover 
additional costs for unexpected changes in the 
original scope of work. See Attachment “A” to 
Amendment No. 1 for cost breakdown of Change 
Order. 

 
13024-S 

Norment Security Group 
 
  

 
Authorization to Utilize 

Maricopa County Contract No. 
13024-S with Norment Security 

Group 
 

 
$13,683.11  

 

 
6-11-14 to 6-30-14 

 
6-11-14 

 
Expires 

 
Vendor needs to install a security system for the 
new bypass & entry gate that is being installed at 
the Globe jail. 

 
Redwood Toxicology 

Laboratory 
 
  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Limited 

Services Contract 
Professional Drug Testing 

Laboratory for Detection of 
Chemical Substances or Alcohol 

 
 

 
$35,000.00  

 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
6-11-14 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 will extend the contract term 
with Redwood Toxicology Labs for an additional 
year. Redwood provides professional drug 
testing. 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

June 9, 2014 to June 13, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
060514 

H&H Heating & Cooling 
 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 060514 

Emergency Repair A/C Unit 
Assessor’s Office, Payson, AZ 

 
Amount not to 

exceed $700.00 

 
6-11-14 to 7-10-14 

 
6-11-13 

 
Expires 

 

 
Currently the A/C is not working and needs to be 
repaired immediately. 

 
042312 

Sun Devil Fire 
Equipment 

 
  

 
Amendment No. 2 to Service 

Agreement No. 042312 

Fire Extinguisher Inspections 
Southern Gila County 

 
$3,500.00 

 
5-1-14 to 4-30-15 

 
6-11-13 

 
Expires 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 has been issued to extend the 
term of the contract for one additional year. 
Contractor will perform annual fire extinguisher 
inspections for the estimated 254 extinguishers in 
Southern Gila County.  They shall also perform 
maintenance and repair as needed upon County 
request. 
 

 
052114 

Lin-Cum, Inc. 
 
  

 
Document Conversion Services 

Contract No. 052114 
Clerk of the Superior Court 

 
 

 
$16,345.65  

 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
6-11-14 

 
Renews 

 
Contractor will provide document conversion 
services for the Clerk of Superior Court.  The 
contractor will pickup and prepare records for 
filming; documents are usually prep-prepared; 
staples removed, etc.  Microfilm archival-process 
and QC.  Microfiche-jacket, title and index.  Store 
original microfiche jackets in Lin-Cum vaults, for 
offsite backup and disaster recovery. 
 

 
36813CONSVR 
HOV Services 

 
  

 
Support and Maintenance 

Agreement No. 36813CONSVR 
 

 
$1,010.00  

 

 
7-21-14 to 7-20-15 

 
6-11-14 

 
Expires 

 
Support and maintenance agreement for the 
Minolta RP605Z, Minolta RFC11 Roll Film Carrier, 
Minolta FC5 Fiche Carrier. A microfilm reader for 
the Recorder’s Office. 
 

 
040214 

Alhambra MHP & Storage 
 
  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Lease 

Agreement No. 040214 
Alhambra MHP & Storage, LLC 

 
 

 
$1,428.00  

 

 
6-1-14 to 5-30-15 

 
6-11-14 

 
Expires 

 
The Globe County Attorney’s office rents storage 
space at Alhambra Mobile Home Park & Storage 
in Globe.  Amendment No. 1 will add one (1) 
storage unit; S115, for an additional $1,428.00 
per year. 
 

 





















































































































































   

ARF-2656     Consent Agenda Item      4. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/01/2014  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors

Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Transportation Needs and Tax Levy Resolution No. 14-06-09 (Amended)

Background Information
On June 24, 2014, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 14-06-09
providing funding to be used for highway and street purposes including costs of
right-of-way acquisitions and expenses related thereto and construction,
reconstruction, maintenance, repair and roadside development of county, city and
town roads, streets and bridges and payment of principal and interest on highway and
street bonds, and for regional transportation projects that are included in the regional
transportation plan of the County prepared by the County, any city, town or regional
planning agency; and levying a transportation excise tax to provide moneys for said
purposes.

Since that time it was discovered that a couple of minor corrections need to be made
to Section 10. Effective Date; Time in Effect of the resolution.

Evaluation
Resolution No. 14-06-09 needs to be amended in order to make some minor
corrections to Section 10. Effective Date; Time in Effect of the resolution, as
follows:

Section 10. Effective Date; Time in Effect.
The 2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax shall take effect on January
1, 2015, if theretofore a majority of the qualified Gila County electors voting at a
countywide special the November 4, 2014, general election approves the 2014 Gila
County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax, and shall be in effect for a period of 20
years from such effective date.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to adopt amended Resolution No. 14-06-09 which
includes the corrected language as provided by Bryan Chambers, Deputy Attorney
Principal.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 14-06-09 



Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 14-06-09 
(Amended) establishing the uses, levying a 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax
and prescribing the method of distribution of the tax revenue to the County, cities and
towns. 

Suggested Motion
Adoption of Resolution No. 14-06-09 (Amended), a resolution providing funding to be
used for highway and street purposes including costs of right of way acquisitions and
expenses related thereto and construction, reconstruction, maintenance, repair and
roadside development of county, city and town roads, streets and bridges and
payment of principal and interest on highway and street bonds, and for regional
transportation projects that are included in the regional transportation plan of the
County prepared by the County, any city, town or regional planning agency; and
levying a transportation excise tax to provide moneys for said purposes.  Section 10.
Effective Date; Time in Effect of the Resolution was amended to reflect some minor
changes.

Attachments
Resolution No. 14-06-09 (Amended)



Resolution 14-06-09 Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-06-09 (AMENDED) 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FUNDING TO BE USED FOR HIGHWAY AND 

STREET PURPOSES INCLUDING COSTS OF RIGHTS OF WAY ACQUISITIONS 

AND EXPENSES RELATED THERETO AND CONSTRUCTION, 

RECONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND ROADSIDE 

DEVELOPMENT OF COUNTY, CITY AND TOWN ROADS, STREETS AND 

BRIDGES AND PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON HIGHWAY AND 

STREET BONDS, AND FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS THAT 

ARE INCLUDED IN THE REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN OF THE 

COUNTY PREPARED BY THE COUNTY, ANY CITY, TOWN OR REGIONAL 

PLANNING AGENCY; AND LEVYING A TRANSPORTATION EXCISE TAX TO 

PROVIDE MONEYS FOR SAID PURPOSES. 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Title. 
This resolution shall be known as the “2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax 
Resolution.” 
 
Section 2. Purpose. 
A. This resolution is adopted pursuant to applicable sections of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 

42, Chapter 6, Article 3, to provide funds for the transportation needs of Gila County 
including the unincorporated County areas and the incorporated cities and towns located 
therein.  In order to adequately provide for those transportation needs for the safety of the 
public, and in a manner which takes into consideration the population growth of both the 
County and the cities and towns within the County during the twenty (20) year period this 
Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax is in effect, it is the intention of the Gila 
County Board of Supervisors that the funds collected be used for any and all transportation 
uses authorized by statute. Currently, uses are prescribed in Arizona Revised Statutes Title 
28, Chapter 17, Article 3, and (Transportation Excise Tax Distribution in Less Populated 
Counties).  The revenues raised from the tax levied pursuant to the terms hereof shall be 
used for transportation purposes such as: 
 
1. Highway and street purposes including roadway construction, reconstruction, 

maintenance, repair and roadside construction of county, city or town roads, streets, 



Resolution 14-06-09 Page 2 of 5 

 

bridges, and railroad crossings. 
2. Payment of principal and interest on highway and street bonds. 
3. Multi-modal transportation systems including single and multi-use trails, sidewalks and 

curbs, and pedestrian pathways. 
4. Regional transportation studies. 
5. Cooperative transportation projects and studies between the federal government and 

its agencies, the State government and its agencies, and the incorporated cities and 
towns within the County. 
 

B. It is the intention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors that any statutory changes 
affecting the transportation uses of the funds collected herefrom shall be applicable and 
included as authorized uses of the funds in addition to those uses presently included in the 
statute(s).  
 

C. The hereinabove described uses are severable.  Should any provision of this resolution be 
deemed by a Court to be illegal or invalid, the validity of the remaining parts, terms, 
provisions, or any valid use of the revenues collected shall not be affected thereby, and said 
illegal or invalid part, term or provision shall not be deemed a part of this resolution and 
shall be severed therefrom, notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution to the 
contrary. 

 
Section 3. Definitions 
 
2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax. The tax imposed by this resolution. 
 
Board. The Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona. 
 
County. The County of Gila, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona. 
 
Department. The Department of Revenue of the State of Arizona.  
 
Population. “Population” means the population determined in the most recent United States 
decennial census or the most recent special census as provide in § 28-6532 and revisions to the 
decennial or special census certified by the United States bureau of the census. 
Added by Laws 1995, Ch. 132 § 3, eff. Oct. 1, 1997. Amended by Laws 1996, ch. 76, § 245, eff. October 1, 1997. 

 
Transportation Excise Tax. The 2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax. 
 
Section 4. Other Definitions. 
To the extent terms are not defined herein, the definition of terms set forth in Arizona Revised 
Statutes § 42-5001, a copy of which is on file in the Gila County Clerk’s office and is by this 
reference made a part hereof, are adopted herein. 
 
 



Resolution 14-06-09 Page 3 of 5 

 

Section 5. Imposition of Tax. 
There is hereby levied upon persons as a result of their business activities within the County, 
cities and towns and shall be collected by the Department, Transportation Excise Taxes at rates 
equal to ten percent (10%) of the State of Arizona transaction privilege tax rates applying to 
each person engaging or continuing in the County, cities and towns in a business taxed under 
Arizona Revised Statutes Title 42, Chapter 5, Article 1.  Such taxes shall be measured by the 
amount or volume of business transacted by persons on account of their business activities, 
and in the amounts to be determined by the application of rates against values, gross proceeds 
of sales or gross income, as the case may be, as prescribed by this resolution. 
 
Section 6. Schedule of Tax Rates. 
The Transportation Excise Taxes levied by this resolution are levied and shall be collected at the 
following rates applied to the values, gross proceeds of sale or gross income, as the case may 
be from the business of every person engaging or continuing in the County in the business 
classifications contained in Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) Title 42, Chapter 5, Article 1 as 
amended, copies of which are on file in the Gila County Clerk’s office and are by this reference 
made a part hereof, as follows: 
 
(a) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.a. 

Intrastate transportation of persons, freight or property as defined 
and described in A.R.S. § 42-1062 – Transportation classification. 

½ of 1% 
 

(b) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.b. 
Producing and furnishing electricity, natural or artificial gas and 
water to consumers as described in A.R.S. § 42-5063 – Utilities 
classification; definitions. 

½ of 1% 

(c) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.c. 
Telecommunication services, as described in A.R.S. § 42-5064 – 
Telecommunications classification; definition. 

½ of 1% 

(d) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.d. 
Intrastate operation of pipelines and conduits for transporting oil or 
natural or artificial gas from one point to another as defined and 
described in A.R.S. § 42-5067 – Pipeline classification. 

½ of 1% 

(e) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.e. 
Intrastate operation of private car lines as defined and described in 
A.R.S. § 42-5068 – Private car line classification and A.R.S. § 42-1430, 
et seq. 

½ of 1% 

(f) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.f. 
Publication of newspapers, magazines and other periodicals and 
publications if published in this state as defined and described in 
A.R.S. § 42-5065 – Publication classification; definition. 

½ of 1% 

(g) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.g. 
Job printing, engraving, embossing and copying as defined and 
described in A.R.S. § 42-5066 – Job printing classification. 

½ of 1% 

(h) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.h. ½ of 1% 



Resolution 14-06-09 Page 4 of 5 

 

Prime contracting and dealership of manufactured buildings as 
defined and described in A.R.S. § 42-5075 – Prime contracting 
classification; exemptions; definitions. 

(i) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.i. 
Operating as an owner builder as described and defined in A.R.S. § 
42-5076 – Owner builder sales classification; definitions. 

½ of 1% 

(j) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.j. 
Operation of an amusement business as defined and described in 
A.R.S. § 42-5073 – Amusement classification. 

½ of 1% 

(k) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.k. 
Operation of a restaurant as defined and described in A.R.S. § 42-
5074 – Restaurant classification. 

½ of 1% 

(l) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.l. 
The leasing or renting of tangible personal property as defined and 
described in A.R.S. § 42-5071 – Personal property rental 
classification. 

½ of 1% 

(m) A.R.S. § 42-5010.A.1.m. 
Retail sales as defined and described in A.R.S. § 42-5061. 

½ of 1% 

(n) A.R.S. § 42-5010.2. 
Engaging in the business of transient lodging classification as 
described in A.R.S. § 42-5070. 

11/20 of 1% 

(o) A.R.S. § 42-5010.3 
Engaging in continuing in the mining classification as described in 
A.R.S. § 42-5072 – Mining classification; definition. 

313/1000 of 1% 

(p) Any additional business classifications the State of Arizona may 
deem to be taxable. 

 

 
Section 7. Exemptions, Exclusions, Deductions and Definitions 
All exemptions, exclusions, deductions and definitions contained in A.R.S. Title 42, Chapter 5, 
shall apply to the categories of businesses listed in Section 6 hereinabove and to the 
transactions described therein.  Copies of these statutes are on file in the Gila County Clerk’s 
office and are made a part hereof by this reference.  
 
Section 8. Administration. 
Unless the context otherwise requires, the administration of the Transportation Excise Tax shall 
be governed by the provisions of A.R.S. Title 42, Chapter 5, Article 1, except: 
1. A separate license is not required for the tax imposed by this resolution, and the tax due 

hereunder shall be included, reported and paid with the transaction privilege tax of the 
State of Arizona. 

2. A separate bond is not required of employees of the Department in administering the 
Transportation Excise Tax. 

3. The tax imposed by this resolution may be included without segregation in any notice and 
lien filed for unpaid transaction privilege tax of the State of Arizona. 

 



Resolution 14-06-09 Page 5 of 5 

 

Section 9. Distribution of Revenues. 
The Department shall distribute the tax revenues raised, to Gila County for use within the 
unincorporated areas of the County, and to the incorporated cities and towns for use within 
their jurisdictions.  Any cities and towns hereafter incorporated shall be entitled to their share 
of the tax revenues distributable to the County, cities and towns beginning in the first quarter 
of the Arizona State fiscal year after their incorporation. The calculation of the amounts to be 
distributed shall be made on the basis that the population of each jurisdiction (Gila County, 
cities, towns) bears to the total population of the County.   
 
Each respective jurisdiction shall receive a minimum of 0.85% of the total amount to be 
distributed. In addition, after the distribution of the minimum to each jurisdiction, the 
remaining amount shall be distributed to each jurisdiction in amounts to be determined by 
multiplying the total tax revenues remaining after the minimum distribution, by a fraction, the 
numerator being the population of each respective jurisdiction and the denominator being the 
total population of Gila County including the cities and towns in the County. 
 
The revenues raised by this excise tax shall not be subject to the jurisdiction’s expenditure and 
revenue limitations. 
 
The cities, the towns and the County shall only use the tax revenues for the purposes 
authorized by this resolution. 
 
Section 10. Effective Date; Time in Effect. 
The 2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax shall take effect on January 1, 2015, if 
theretofore a majority of the qualified Gila County electors voting at the November 4, 2014, 
general election approves the 2014 Gila County ½ Cent Transportation Excise Tax, and shall be 
in effect for a period of 20 years from such effective date. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of June 2014, and AMENDED this 1st day of July 
2014. 
 
ATTEST:     GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_________________________  __________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Deputy Attorney Principal 


	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Order No. LL-14-04, a Liquor License Application for Killmer's Kountry Store
	ATT.S.O. Affidavit of Posting
	Item2.B.  Public Hearing-Order No. LL-14-05, a Liquor License Application for Trident Winery
	ATT.LL-14-05 Application for Liquor License
	ATT.LL-14-05 Interoffice Memorandums for Approval
	ATT.LL-14-05 Sheriff's Affidavit of Posting
	Item3.A.  Software Maintenance Agreement with New World Systems Corporation
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item3.B.  Intergovernmental Agreement among the Pima County School Superintendent, the Maricopa County School Superintendent, the Yavapai County School Superint
	ATT.Gila County IGA ITV Final_062014
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item3.C.  Resolution No. 14-07-02 General Election for Continuation of Gila County 1_2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax
	ATT.Resolution No. 14-07-02
	Item3.D.  Approval to proceed with the acquisition of the NAPA Building at 110 W. Main Street in Payson, AZ
	Item4.A.  Bureau of Indian Affairs Contract No. A11PC00100 Amendment No. 11
	ATT.Amendment No. 11
	ATT.Amendment No. 10
	ATT.Amendment No. 9
	ATT.Amendment No. 8
	ATT.Amendment No. 7
	ATT.Amendment No. 6
	ATT.Amendment No. 5
	ATT.Amendment No. 4
	ATT.Amendment No. 3
	ATT.Amendment No. 2
	ATT.Amendment No. 1
	ATT.Contract No. A11PC00100
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.B.  Notice of Intent to Request Release of Funds for Residential Rehabilitation Projects Using RER_Appendix A Tiered Review Protocol
	ATT.Notice of Intent to Request Release of Funds ADOH
	Item4.C.  Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc., Special Event Liquor License Applications for September 12-14,  and September 20, 2014
	ATT.Special Event Application 9-12-14-2014
	ATT.Special Event Application 9-20-2014
	Item4.D.  Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library Special Event Liquor License Application for October 11, 2014
	ATT.Isabelle Hunt Special Event Liquor License Application
	Item4.E.  Local CORP Boards Updated Membership 
	ATT.CORP Local Board for Detention Officers and Non-Uniformed Officers
	ATT.CORP Local Board for Dispatchers
	Item4.F.  East Verde Park Fire District Governing Board Appointment
	Item4.G.  Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Reports for February 2014 and May 2014
	ATT.May 2014
	jp0404 may2014
	jp0404 books may2014

	ATT.February 2014
	jp0404Feb2014
	Payson JP FY13-14 Ledger feb 2014

	Item4.H.  Recorder's Office Monthly Report for April 2014
	ATT.Recorder's April 2014 Monthly Report
	Item4.I.  Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Report for the Month of May 2014
	ATT.Clerk of Court report for May 2014
	Item4.J.  May 27, 2014, and June 3, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Meeting Minutes
	ATT.BOS 06-03-14 Meeting Minutes
	MAY 13, 2014
	MAY 20, 2014
	MAY 27, 2014

	ATT.BOS 05-27-14 Meeting Minutes
	Entity
	Population


	Item4.K.  Human Resources reports for the weeks of 06_03_14, 06_10_14, 06_17_14, and 06_24_14.
	ATT.June Human Resources Summary Report
	ATT.06_03_14 Human Resources Report
	ATT.06_10_14 Human Resources Report
	ATT.06_17_14 Human Resources Report
	ATT.06_24_14 Human Resources Report
	Item4.L.  Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Week Ending 6-13-14
	ATT.Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Week Ending 6-13-14
	Item4.N.  Transportation Needs and Tax Levy Resolution No. 14-06-09 (Amended)
	ATT.Resolution No. 14-06-09 (Amended)

